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Legal Structure
Coastline Housing Limited (‘CHL’ or ‘the Company’) was incorporated in November 1996 in order to effect a Large Scale 

Voluntary Transfer (LSVT) from Kerrier District Council in March 1998.  CHL is an independent, social business, run on a not-for-

profit basis.  It has three wholly-owned subsidiaries:

• Coastline Services Limited (‘CSL’), a building maintenance and grounds contractor;

• Coastline Design & Build Limited (‘CDB’), a design and build contractor; and

• Coastline Care Limited (‘CCL’), which has remained dormant throughout 2016/17.

Together these companies form Coastline Housing Group (‘the Group’).

CHL is registered with The Charity Commission as a charitable company and as a provider of social housing with the Homes 

and Communities Agency (‘the HCA’); both of these provide the primary regulatory framework for Coastline with the HCA as 

principal regulator.  It is also a Company Limited by Guarantee registered at Companies House. CSL, CDB and CCL are also 

registered at Companies House.

The Group is governed by a Board of Non-Executive Directors and the Chief Executive.

 

The Directors of the Company who have served during the year and up to the date of the signing of these financial statements 

are listed on page 1.

Principal Activities
The principal activity of the Group is the provision of rented accommodation for people on low incomes.  Any financial surplus 

from our activities is reinvested into improving existing homes, communities and services, and developing new homes.

The investment into new affordable housing is a key strategic deliverable and represents an expected level of investment in 

excess of £174 million over the next five years.  This is in addition to the investment in existing stock which is forecast to be £25 

million over the same period.

The Group also consists of CSL; a property and grounds maintenance company providing services to a number of public and 

private sector clients across Cornwall and CDB; a commercial design and build contractor for new builds whose principal client 

is CHL. 

Due to significant changes in contracts and the delivery of care and support across Cornwall the trade and activities of CCL were 

transferred back into CHL from 1 April 2015. The Company was dormant for the year ended 31 March 2017.

Report of the Board

2

Report of the Board



3

Corporate Plan: Mission, Values and Objectives

The financial year 2016/2017 saw the final year of the previous corporate plan and the launch of a refreshed vision for the next 

five years 2017-2021.  The mission and values have remained constant along with the key aims and deliverables.

Mission

Our mission statement is:

This is our ‘brand promise’ to our Customers, partners and other stakeholders – a clear and succinct statement of our purpose 

and what we stand for.  It is also underpinned by a fourth statement of “Great Foundations”, which ensures the business 

fundamentals are in place that enable and support our charitable mission.

Values

Our values are what we as an organisation care most about and they underpin everything that we do. We will:

Great Homes Great Services Great People

Value each otherPut our 
customers first

Be open, honest  
and accountable

Strive to be  
the best

The full Corporate Plan document is available on our website 

http://www.coastlinehousing.co.uk/sites/default/files/documents/Corporate%20Plan%20WEB%20Feb%2017.pdf 

but can also be obtained from our registered office, provides details of outcomes, milestones and performance measures for 

each objective. 
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Objectives:

We will build 1,000 new affordable homes for rent and low 
cost home ownership;

We will ensure that none of our homes cost more than £600 a 
year to heat;

We will have all of our core customer services available  
on-line, and 50% of our customers will be choosing to use 
these services; 

We will grow our income while ensuring that we also increase 
our productivity, improving our operating margin to 38%, 
allowing us to invest more in homes and services; and

We will be recognised as a brilliant company to work for, 
reaching the Top 50 of The Sunday Times Best Companies.50
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Governance Structure

The Board 
The Board is led by the Chair, Derek Law MBE, and the membership is given 

on page 1.  Each Director brings a range of experiences and skills to the 

operation of the Board and its Committees.  New Board Directors undergo a 

formal induction programme which includes background information about the 

Group and other governance-related issues.  The current Board consists of eight 

independent Non-Executive Directors, one co-opted Non-Executive Director and 

one Executive Director. Board recruitment is based on skills, knowledge and 

expertise; vacancies are widely advertised.  The Directors are all subject to an 

annual appraisal conducted by the Chair, Deputy Chair and the Chair of the 

Audit & Risk Committee and one other Non-Executive Director in respect of the 

Chair.

There have been no changes to the Board since 31 March 2017.

The Board controls the Group’s strategic direction and reviews its operating and 

financial position.  It is supplied with timely and relevant information to enable it 

to discharge its duties.  Board papers are distributed in advance of meetings and 

papers are sufficiently detailed to enable the Directors to understand the Group 

and Company management and performance.

Board Committees
The Board delegates some of its responsibilities to three Committees: the Remuneration & Nominations Committee, the Audit 

& Risk Committee and the Investment Committee.

Remuneration & Nominations Committee
This Committee is chaired by the Board Deputy Chair, Helen Riley-Humfrey.  

The other Directors on the Committee who served during the year were Sylvia 

Dudley, John Waldron and Derek Law. It met twice during the year and its 

work included:

•   considering targets for the Executive Team and recommending these to  

     the Board;

•   reviewing the performance and formal appraisals of the Executive Team;

•   considering staff pay awards and benefits and making recommendations  

    to the Board;

•   monitoring the succession and recruitment of Non-Executive Directors; 

•   monitoring the Human Resources function via the consideration of  

     regular key performance indicators; and

•   reviewing the HR Strategy and policies.

Derek Law MBE
Chair of Board

Has spent over 40-years working in social care, 

including 13 years as deputy director of social 

services in Cornwall, 10-years as Corporate 

Director of Adult and Community services in 

North Yorkshire as well as Director of Adults 

for Greenwich and Southampton councils.  

Derek has also been a non-executive director of 

Cornwall Partnership NHS Foundation trust and 

Devon and Cornwall Probation trust

Helen Riley-Humfrey
Vice Chair of Board

Chair of Remuneration  
& Nomination Committee

Has spent 30 years in education, starting as a 

secondary school teacher and concluding as Vice 

Principal of an FE College and University centre. 

She is currently working as a Project Manager for 

the NHS based in Camborne. Helen has always 

been interested in the links between education, 

housing and health.
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Audit & Risk Committee
This Committee is chaired by Peter Stephens. The other Directors who served 

during the year on the Committee were Sue Roberts, Mark Butterworth and 

Helen Riley-Humfrey.  It met four times during the year and its work included:

•   reviewing the external auditor’s plans for the audit of the Group’s financial  

     statements;

•   reviewing the external auditor’s management report and audit highlights    

     memorandum;

•   reviewing the financial statements for the year;

•   reviewing plans and reports from the internal auditors on the Group’s system  
     of internal control,  monitoring responses to those reports and compliance  
     with recommendations

•   reviewing the processes in place for monitoring, evaluating and managing  

     the risks facing the Group and;

•   considering the results of the internal audit tender and confirming new  

     arrangements with PwC from April 2017.

Investment Committee
This Committee is chaired by Deepak Chandra. The other directors on the 

Committee who served during the year were Derek Law MBE, Peter Stephens, 

Allister Young, John Waldron and John Newey. It met four times during the year 

and its work included:

•    reviewing and monitoring the Group’s 30-year Business Plan, stress testing and  

     defensive action planning;

•   reviewing the Group’s funding requirements and arrangements;

•   reviewing the performance of the Group’s development programme;

•   reviewing the Group’s maintenance programme; and

•   reviewing treasury management policies and strategies.

Peter Stephens
Chair of Audit and Risk Committee

Has held a number of senior positions with 

manufacturing and service companies.  He has 

also worked for Cornwall Council as part of the 

Objective One programme and for the Department 

of Trade & Industry’s commercial property arm, 

English Estates.  As a non-executive director of 

Raven Housing based near Gatwick Peter was the 

Chair of the Audit Committee and Vice Chair.

Deepak Chandra
Chair of Investment Committee

Is a senior executive with a proven track record 

in housing, finance, private equity, property 

development and regeneration fields. He has 

led complex programmes and multi-disciplinary 

teams both within the public, voluntary and 

commercial sectors.

Board and Executive Officers Remuneration
Non-Executive Directors receive remuneration from the Company as well as reimbursement of expenses incurred.  The 

remuneration of the Executive Officers is determined by the Board. 

Governance Code
The Board has adopted the National Housing Federation Code of Governance (2015), and maintains the provision for up to two 

co-optees in addition to the Board of up to ten within the Company’s Articles. 

6

Report of the Board - cont’d



7

 

Staffing Structure
Although our commitment to customer care extends to every part 

of our business, most Customers’ first point of contact is our 

dedicated Customer Access Team.  Using a centralised information 

management system, this team of communication professionals 

responds to queries, processes feedback and requests, and offers a 

single, approachable point of liaison between the Customer and our 

various specialist departments.

The Customer Access Team forms the hub for the rest of our Housing, 

Assets and Communities Directorate which has responsibility for 

all maintenance and general housing management issues including 

our supported and sheltered accommodation.  Our Community 

Investment Team ensures that Customers are involved in 

shaping, challenging and influencing our services at every 

level.  This team also strives to improve and increase such 

opportunities, ensuring that our business is led by our 

Customers’ needs and aspirations and works to support local 

community initiatives.

The Group’s development and sales programme is lead and 

managed by the Development and Sales Team which, along 

with our in-house contractor team Coastline Services makes up our 

Development and Commercial Services Directorate.

These teams are all assisted in their work by a Finance and Performance 

Directorate providing financial and performance information, risk 

management arrangements and treasury management functions; 

and by a Corporate Services Directorate providing Information 

Technology, Governance Support, Human Resources, Public Relations/

Marketing and the Group’s approach to Health and Safety.

An Executive Team oversees the day-to-day operational running and, 

working with the Board and wider colleagues, identifies and executes 

the Group’s strategic direction.  The members of the Executive Team 

are shown on page 1. 

Employees
The Group relies greatly on the quality and commitment of its 

employees in order to meet its corporate objectives.  The Group 

ensures that sufficient staff with appropriate skills are employed and 

that effective employment policies are in place and good practice is 

followed.

The Board express their thanks for the hard work and commitment 

shown by all employees of the Coastline Group. 
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Internal Control and Risk Management

Approach
The Group has adopted a risk-based approach to internal control.  This approach includes regular evaluation of the nature 

and extent of risks to which the Group is exposed and is consistent with the approach expected by the Financial Reporting 

Council and the Homes and Communities Agency.

The Board recognises that no system of internal control can provide absolute assurance or eliminate all risk.  The system of 

internal control is designed to manage risk and to provide reasonable assurance that key business objectives and expected 

outcomes will be achieved.  It also exists to give reasonable assurance about the preparation and reliability of financial and 

operational information and the safeguarding of the Group’s assets and interests.

Assurance over the internal control environment is provided in a number of ways, the most significant of which are set out 

below.

Culture and ‘Tone at the Top’
The Group takes internal control seriously. Disregard of control procedures is treated as a potential disciplinary offence.  

Training in appreciation of risk and methods of control forms a part of Board and management development.

Equal Opportunities
The Group is committed to an equal opportunities policy within which it actively encourages applications for employment 

from all groups in society.  It is also committed to an equality and diversity agenda designed to ensure equal access to its 

services.

Health and Safety
The Group is committed to its health and safety and welfare obligations and complies with relevant health and safety 

legislation and the Group-wide policy.  Coastline adopts a pro-active and robust approach to all areas Landlord Health & 

Safety, utilising independent experts for specialist areas of compliance in conjunction with a programme of internal audit 

reviews.

External Audit and Internal Audit
The external auditors have a duty to report to the Board significant matters relating to control weaknesses and inefficiencies 

that come to their attention during the course of their audit work under the Code of Audit Practice.

In addition to its external auditors, the Group maintains an independent internal audit function whose principal objectives 

are to assess the appropriateness and effectiveness of the systems of internal control and risk management.  Initial findings 

reports are presented to the Audit & Risk Committee, which receives a follow-up report at 

each meeting setting out the progress on all outstanding recommendations.

Customer Scrutiny Panel
The Group has an effective Scrutiny Panel (called ‘Customer Scrutiny into Coastline’) 

which looks at information passed to it by involved Customers (including through the 

‘Great Homes’ and ‘Great Services’ customer teams) as well as performance information.  

It can choose to look at any area of service and has direct access to the Board at each 

Board meeting.  This approach is considered a key element of ‘co-regulation’ and provides 

further assurance over performance and the internal control environment.
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Risk Management
Management responsibility has been clearly defined for the identification, evaluation and control of significant risks throughout 

the Group.  There is a formal and on-going process of management review which is co-ordinated through a quarterly reporting 

framework from management, through the Executive Team to the Audit & Risk Committee.  This process has been in place 

throughout the year but subject to continual review and improvement and is consistent with best practice and regulatory 

requirements.

The Audit & Risk Committee reviews the Group’s significant risks and the overall risk position compared to the Board’s agreed 

risk appetite each quarter, and the minutes of the meeting are subsequently reviewed by the Board.  The Board receives an 

update on the Group’s risk position three times a year, and also formally reviews the risk map and sets the Group’s risk appetite 

on an annual basis.

The Group recognises that our Customers and our assets are vital to the on-going success of the Group, and we operate within 

a cautious to medium overall risk range which we consider to be appropriate for our business. We have no appetite for health 

and safety risks, which must be managed to the lowest practicable level. In other areas we are willing to accept some risk within 

acceptable financial parameters to enable us to grow our business and achieve our corporate objectives.

Significant Risks (taken from the Significant Risk Register) are identified as those having a combined likelihood/impact score of 

twelve or above (on a scale of one to 25).

Risk Action being taken
Shared ownership properties do not sell  Weekly sales meetings

 Monthly reporting of sales progress as part of management information  
    provided to Board

 Quarterly sales reporting to Investment Committee

Risk of death or injury to person on 
Coastline maintenance project

 Construction (Design and Management) Regulations Co-Ordinator in place  
     for all development and major repairs projects

Asbestos exposure  All repairs orders flag potential asbestos presence based on asbestos register  
    which is integrated with housing database

 Contractor web browser provides asbestos information for each home

Responsive repairs performance 
deteriorates

 Monthly monitoring and reporting of key performance indicators and  
    budgets to Board

 Feedback from Customer Scrutiny into Coastline

Failure to manage gas, electrical and 
heating maintenance contracts

 New contracts recently put in place

 100% asset inspection completed on these elements and comprehensive  
     database of components maintained

 Corgi accredited (2016) landlord gas servicing programme 

Homeless crisis and day centre buildings 
become unfit for purpose

 Build new building and sell existing properties

 Site identified for new building

Great Homes

9
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Risk Action being taken
Commissioning of services by Cornwall 
Council

 Quarterly contract review meetings held with Cornwall Council

 Close working relationships established with partner agencies

 Active management of funding expiry dates

 Alternative use for buildings considered and prepared in the event of losing  
     or being offered uneconomic contract arrangements

Adverse changes to Government rent 
policy for supported accommodation

 Income Collection project work package for 2017 agreed by Board includes  
     focus on reducing service cost elements of supported housing

 Impact of potential funding changes modelled and considered by the Board

Customer expectations increase  2017-2021 Corporate Plan sets out on-going development of customer  
     service offer

 Customer Access Strategy recently approved by Board

 Customer Scrutiny into Coastline arrangements include direct access to  
     Board

Poor record keeping  Care certificate completed by all extra care staff

 Care Quality Commission inspection regime reviews record keeping

 Record keeping included as key part of induction process

 Regular quality assurance checks by Care Manager

Risk Action being taken

Unable to recruit staff of a sufficient calibre  Targeted apprenticeships programme for technical and professional area

 Promotion of Coastline and Cornwall outside of local areas to encourage  
       wider geographical applications

Great People

Great Services
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Risk Action being taken
Rent policy changes  Stress testing and defensive action planning review by the Board includes  

      modelling of different rental scenarios

 Detailed legal advice taken in relation to Welfare Reform and Work Act and  
      Housing and Planning Act to ensure accuracy and maximisation of  
      available income.

Failure to achieve Business Plan  Business Plan reviewed quarterly

 Quarterly review on performance against targets as part of Corporate Plan  
      updates to Board

Negative impact of Universal Credit (UC)  All front line staff trained on UC and ongoing programme of information      
      to customers

 Inspiring Futures programme to assist customers into training and work

 Customer insight data embedded part of pro-active arrears management

Debt security – changes in values and over/
under allocations

 Annual revaluations of properties

 Quarterly reporting of current and projected security position to Investment  
      Committee

 Properties charged to loans promptly to maintain flexibility on asset cover

Business Plan assumptions incorrect  Business Plan assumptions reviewed by Investment Committee on a  
      quarterly basis and reported to Board

 Regular sensitivity testing and scenario planning

Increased interest rates  High level of fixed rate debt currently in place

 Details of projected fixed rate debt and interest rate risk management  
      proposals included in Annual Treasury Strategy

Non availability of loan finance  36-month cashflow with details of contracted arrangements, facilities and  
      available security reported monthly to Board

 Early engagement with funders in relation to potential debt requirements

Great Foundations
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The on-going review of risk includes consideration of the completeness of the principal risks identified, of the relative significance 

of those risks and of the risk management techniques that are applied to mitigate those risks.

The Board agreed that a range of risk mitigation techniques should be used including assurance, preparation of contingency 

plans and internal controls.  The system of internal control is present in all aspects of the Group’s operations and is essential to 

its management of risk.

Fraud & Significant Control Failings

Coatline complies with the regulator’s requirements with respect to fraud and has a clear policy that has been approved by the 

Board.

The policy requires a register to be maintained of all actual and attempted fraud.  All such cases are reported to the Board 

through the Audit & Risk Committee.  All cases are reported to the Homes and Communities Agency.

Contingency plans exist to be invoked in the case of suspected fraud.  These are designed to prevent further loss and to 

maximise the chance of recovery of any losses that might have been incurred.

No significant control failings or fraud have been identified during the period.

Overall Assessment

The Board is satisfied that the Group’s risk management and internal control systems remained effective during the year and up 

to the date of the approval of these financial statements.

No weaknesses in internal control which resulted in material misstatement or loss have been identified which would have 

required disclosure in these financial statements.
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Regulatory Compliance
The Board reviews annually compliance with the National Housing Federation Code of Governance (2015), and maintains the 

provision for up to two co-optees in addition to the Board of up to ten within the Company’s Articles.  The Company fully 

complies with the code.

Following a robust self-assessment undertaken by the Executive Team and approved by the Board, Coastline certifies compliance 

with all standards within the Regulatory Framework for Social Housing (April 2015). Open communication has been maintained 

with the Regulator throughout the year.

As part of the Regulatory Framework registered providers of social housing are required to publish a self-assessment setting out 

how they are achieving value for money in delivering their purpose and objectives.  The Board believes that the requirements 

of the Regulatory Framework are consistent with the values of Coastline as set out on page 3, which include commitments 

to being ‘open, honest and accountable’ and ‘striving to be the best’.  The Strategic Report (page 18) sets out information 

regarding Coastline’s activities, including detailed performance information and benchmarking and meets the requirements of 

the Regulatory Framework.

The Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) undertook an In Depth Assessment (IDA) during 

the period March to June 2017 and published a refreshed regulatory judgement for Coastline 

Housing in June 2017.  The regulatory ratings for financial viability and governance are as 

follows:

Viability (V1)
“The provider meets the requirements set out in the Governance and Financial Viability standard 

of the Regulatory Framework in relation to financial viability.”

Governance (G1)
“The governing body, supported by appropriate governance and executive arrangements, maintains satisfactory control of the 

organisation.”

Further details of the HCA regulatory approach and assessment of Coastline are available on their website, www.

homesandcommunities.gov.uk. 

Merger Code
In March 2016 the Board considered and adopted the new NHF Merger Code.  This voluntary code sets out ten principles which 

form a framework for considering the various ‘partnering’ opportunities that may arise.  

The Board reviewed its position in May 2017 and re-asserted Coastline’s commitment to the principles within that code and 

Coastline’s corporate values.
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Other Disclosures
Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance
The Company has maintained directors’ and officers’ liability insurance throughout the year. This cover is provided through our 

affiliation fee with the National Housing Federation.

Charitable and Political Donations 
No political donations were made during the year (2016: £nil). Donations to charity made during the year totalled £361 (2016: 

£500).

Disclosure of Information to Auditors
The Board members who held office at the date of approval of this Board report confirm that:

• so far as they are each aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Group’s auditors are unaware; and

• each Director has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a Director to make themselves aware of any relevant  

 audit information and to establish that the Group’s auditors are aware of that information.

Auditor
A resolution to re-appoint KPMG LLP as Auditor of the Group will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

Going Concern
The Board confirms it has a reasonable expectation that the Group and Company has adequate resources to continue in 

operational existence for the foreseeable future.  Accordingly it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the 

Group’s and Company’s financial statements.
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Statement of the Board’s Responsibilities in respect of the Report of the Board and 
the Financial Statements
The Board is responsible for preparing the Report of the Board, the Strategic Report and the Financial Statements in accordance 

with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Board to prepare financial statements for each financial year.  Under that law they have elected to 

prepare the Group and Company financial statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and applicable law (UK 

Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) including FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic 

of Ireland.  

Under company law the Board must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair 

view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of their surplus or deficit for that period.  In preparing these financial 

statements, the Board is required to:

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

• make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

• state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards and the Statement of Recommended Practice have been followed,   

 subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group and the  

 Company will continue in business.

The Board is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group’s transactions 

and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and enable them to ensure that the 

financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006, the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and the Accounting 

Direction for Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 2015. The Board has a general responsibility for taking such steps as 

are reasonably open to it to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The Board is responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the Group’s 

website. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation 

in other jurisdictions. 

By order of the Board

D Law MBE

Chair – Coastline Housing Ltd

27 July 2017

Coastline House

4 Barncoose Gateway Park

Pool, Redruth

Cornwall

TR15 3RQ
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Strategic Report
Five-year performance summary 
The tables below set out the Group’s five-year statement of comprehensive income and statement of financial position:

12013 2014 22015 2016 2017

Statement of Comprehensive Income £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Turnover: Continuing Activities 22,218 22,571 22,685 24,392 25,986

Cost of Sales  (2,456) (1,365) (1,538) (966) (1,742)

Operating costs (13,812) (14,341) (14,164) (15,550) (15,401)

Operating Surplus 5,950 6,865 6,983 7,876 8,843

Surplus on sales of properties     489 670 537 933 522

Net interest payable & similar charges  (2,807) (3,776) (4,003) (4,442) (4,366)

One off cost relating to refinancing - - - - (936)

Surplus before taxation 3,632 3,759 3,517 4,367 4,063

Statement of Financial Position £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Housing properties 73,952 78,709 112,713 129,596 157,866

Other fixed assets 3,704 3,602 4,138 4,437 4,299

Total fixed assets 77,656 82,311 116,851 134,033 162,165

Net current assets 4,255 10,304 15,025 27,762 14,986

Total assets less current liabilities 81,911 92,615 131,876 161,795 177,151

Loans and long term liabilities (63,290) (70,379) (106,758) (132,573) (144,183)

Pensions liabilities (2,695) (3,307) (5,762) (5,656) (6,154)

Total assets less liabilities 15,926 18,929 19,356 23,566 26,814

Revenue reserves 15,926 18,929 19,356 23,566 26,814

Total reserves 15,926 18,929 19,356 23,566 26,814

1 2012-2014 Reported under old UK GAAP
2 2015 (restated) and 2016 Reported in accordance with FRS102
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Operating Environment and Highlights
Financial performance for the Group continues to improve, with operating and net margins increasing, driven by the growth 

in units.  This is in line with the expectations of the Corporate Plan and the Group’s approach to Value for Money which is to 

focus on improving margins not just though operational efficiency improvements, but also through delivery of new affordable 

housing.

A significant impact on our results for 2016/17 is the cost of re-financing one of our original stock transfer funders, which 

included fixed rate arrangements through to 2022.  The one-off cost of ending these arrangements was just under £1m and 

this has been highlighted in the five-year performance summary table and related graphical representations.

The 2016/17 financial year could be categorised as a year of change; the level of political change primarily and the period 

of uncertainty that has flowed from that.  Across Europe we have new leaders in France, Italy and Austria; also a new Prime 

Minister here in the UK along with the election of a new President in the US.  These changes in leadership have been coupled 

with the landmark decision in June 2016 made by the referendum for the UK to exit the European Union.  The Houses of 

Parliament enacted this decision in February 2017 by passing the European Union Bill and beginning the process of Brexit by 

triggering Article 50 on 29 March 2017.

Net Margin and Interest Cover graphs show the position with the adjustment to exclude the one-off costs associated with the 

refinancing completed during 2016/17.

19

Strategic Report  - cont’d



2020

These changes alongside increasing inflation, driven by the 

increase in import prices as a result of the weak pound and 

the lack of a corresponding increase in pay have significantly 

altered the operating environment for Housing Associations.  

Whilst low interest rates continue there is more debate 

about when rates will increase. This is not new as rates have 

been low since 2009 with the only movement since that date 

being a further reduction.

The challenge of these particular circumstances for Housing 

Associations is that with rents reducing by 1% a year until 2020 

any increase in headline inflation increases further the net impact 

of that reduction on operating margins.  Essentially, costs 

rising faster than Bank of England inflation forecasts during 

a period where the link to inflation for rents has been 

removed.

Whilst Coastline benefits from the current low interest 

rate environment and forecast low long-term rates, 

this needs to be balanced with providing a stable 

platform and managing the downside risk of rates 

increasing over the yield curve as a whole and then 

impacting on longer term business assumptions.

Continuing the theme of uncertainty, the current position 

in relation to our rental income is uncertain with the position 

of our main rented portfolio post 2020 yet to be confirmed.  

Additionally, the current plan to cap supported housing rents at Local 

Housing Allowance (LHA) levels creates a potential funding shortfall as 

the total costs of provision for this type of accommodation that 

are currently paid to providers are in excess of LHA.  The aim 

to attempting to use LHA caps to reduce the Housing Benefit 

bill is clear, but does not take into account the complexity 

and cost of providing supported housing.  The ring-fencing 

of additional funds for the Local Authorities to procure 

the necessary services also ignores the context of funding 

and resourcing reductions that local authorities are currently 

seeing.  Perhaps most importantly, the proposal puts existing 

and future provision of supported housing for our community’s 

most vulnerable people at risk.

The other points of note for housing that occurred during 

2016/17 were the publishing of the White Paper ‘Fixing 

our Broken Housing Market’ and the de-regulatory 

changes that came into effect from April 2017 which 

were included in the Housing and Planning Act.  The 

de-regulatory changes delivered as expected in relation 
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to the parts of our business that require prior consent from the regulator. These being; disposals (still subject to Charity 

Commission Regulation), restructuring and mergers.  The other key element is regulations which limit or prevent local 

authorities from exerting influence over private registered providers through either appointing or removing officers or 

controlling voting rights. 

Amidst the political and economic uncertainty there remains an unmet need for social housing across the UK and in Coastline’s 

area of operation in Cornwall.  The film Cathy Comes Homes had its 50th birthday during the year and whilst it inspired a 

generation of leaders in the social housing movement and wider philanthropy in housing we are thankfully operating in a 

much improved housing position in 2017.  A film with the potential to inspire a new audience “I Daniel Blake” screened at 

Cannes during the year and highlighted the challenges of living in an environment where claiming benefits and living in social 

housing are not always understood.  

Coastline’s approach to supporting Customers is embedded throughout the work of the organisation but especially so in 

our approach to Income Collection. This includes a range of support provision for individuals as well as our Inspiring Futures 

programme which acts as a “returnship” scheme for Coastline customers delivering much needed work experience and 

support helping customers to be self-sufficient in terms of future access to work.  This approach has seen our top quartile 

arrears performance improved on during 2016/17 contributing directly to the financial health of the organisation.

Coastline’s overall approach during this period of change and uncertainty has been to continue an ambitious Corporate Plan 

programme of investment in new social housing and create the financial framework for further delivery.  A new corporate plan 

has been produced covering the period 2017-2021. Whilst it retains much of the previous plan in mission and vision it has 

increased focus on growth, very much reflecting on the need for Housing Associations to get building and deliver the much 

needed homes for our communities.

The core principle of maximising our delivery of new housing investment is a central part of our approach to value for money 

as this investment delivers additional housing without adding significantly to our management cost base.  This objective 

maintains the benefit of focussing our attention on housing delivery as well as generating value for money savings over time 

whilst not diminishing our investment in wider community based initiatives which are part of delivering high quality services.

In such a working environment there is no room for complacency and it is critical that our business remains focused on 

maintaining and improving levels of customer service, operational efficiency and financial performance.  However, it is also 

important to take stock of and communicate what we have achieved to date, so that we can both celebrate and understand 

where we have further work to do.  
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During 2016/17 we spent £31.2 million 

building new homes and secured funding 

of £7.5 million from the Homes and 

Communities Agency (HCA) to build 499 

homes by 2021.  During 2016/17 we completed 139 

homes and started on site with 282 new homes – both 

records for Coastline.

At the end of March 2017 we had 

471 homes on site and forecasted 

completions for 2017/18 are 364.  Our 

current development commitments 

(mainly grant funded) are sufficient to 

meet the corporate plan target of building 1,000 new 

homes by 2021.

To measure the additional social value of our core activity, of providing affordable homes, for the local and 

national economy we calculate the ‘social dividend’ generated by our below market rents.  This year we have 

calculated that our rents are on average £57 per week, or £2,956 per year below market rents.  This means 

that in total our rents generate £10.9 million (2016: £10.8 million) per year of savings to the economy.  Of 

this £2.4 million represents direct savings to customers and the local economy, and £7.2 million is a reduction 

in the country’s housing benefit bill.  In 2016/17 our total rental income was £19.0 million, so the social dividend 

generated by our rents represents 57% of our rental income.

We spent 

£9.5 million 

maintaining our 

homes during 

the year, of which £2.8 million 

was long-term investment 

made possible by our strong 

operating surplus. 

Coastline Housing’s operating margin of 34.0% was an improvement 

on last year’s record 32.3%, and in cash terms the operating surplus 

was £8.8 million (2016: £7.9 million).  The operating margin shows 

how efficient we are in running the business; and the operating 

surplus provides the cash we need to fund the construction of new 

homes and invest in improvements to our existing homes.  This strong 

performance is the result of an ongoing focus on delivering efficient, customer 

focused services. Our strong financial performance, combined with our high levels of 

customer satisfaction, provides strong evidence that we are, in the main, delivering 

the right services in an efficient and cost effective way.

We were awarded £400,000 from 

the Central Heating Fund to install 

central heating in 118 homes.

We delivered 23,300 hours of care and support at 

our Extra Care Scheme, Miners Court, in Redruth 

with residents reporting 100% satisfaction.

Despite the ever-challenging 

economic climate, our rent 

arrears continue to be one of the 

lowest in the sector at 0.51%.

Repayment of legacy debt facility including cancellation 

of embedded interest rate hedging cost £0.9m but with 

a payback period of four years and reducing our average 

interest rate costs immediately.

To this end, we have set out below some of our most significant achievements over the last year. The remainder of this report 

provides more detail of what we have achieved against our Corporate Plan aims, and what we plan to do in the coming years:
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Financial Structure

During 2016/17 Coastline Housing completed a further 

re-financing of its loan portfolio.  This included the 

repayment of a legacy lender, the securing of funds 

via a private placement and new agreements which 

addressed the financial covenants in a post Financial 

Reporting Standard, FRS102 reporting environment.  

This work puts in place the necessary platform to enable 

Coastline to begin to deliver on our new Corporate Plan 

and seek further loan finance to invest in new affordable 

housing delivery as part of the HCA Affordable Homes 

Programme 2016-2021.

Long term borrowings increased by £4.0 million during 

the year (2016: £23.0 million) to cover projected capital 

expenditure and manage treasury risk during the year 

and now stand at £106.3 million (2016: £102.3 

million) against facilities at year end of £131.6 million 

(2016: £127.3 million).

Treasury activities are controlled and monitored by the 

Investment Committee, under delegated authority 

from the Board, and are executed by the Director of 

Finance with the assistance of external consultants 

as required. This ensured that adequate cost-effective 

funding is available for the requirements of the 

business and that financial risk is minimised.  The 

process is periodically subject to review by internal 

auditors.  Cash flows are monitored and forecast 

regularly to minimise cash held and further funds 

are drawn down as required to cover the investment 

plans of the Group.

Coastline Housing’s financial instruments comprise borrowings, some cash and liquid resources and various items such as trade 

debtors and trade creditors that arise directly from its operations.  The 

main purpose of these financial instruments is to finance Coastline 

Housing’s operations.
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The main risks arising from Coastline Housing’s financial instruments are interest rate risk and liquidity risk.  The Investment 

Committee reviews and agrees the management of these risks as summarised below:

Interest rate risk: Coastline finances its operations through a mixture of generated surpluses, and short, medium and long 

term borrowings.  This position is reported to the Investment Committee on a quarterly basis.  At the year-end 91% (2016: 

88%) of the Group’s borrowings were at fixed rates of interest.  The average duration of the Group’s interest rate fixes was 17 

years (2016: 15 years).

Liquidity risk: Liquidity risk is managed by setting and monitoring required levels of cash and available facilities as well as 

monitoring the availability of loan security.  A three-year monthly cashflow and a three-month weekly cashflow are monitored 

on a monthly basis by the Board and more detailed information on liquidity and loan security is reported to the Investment 

Committee on a quarterly basis.  Total facilities available increased to £131.6 million (2016: £127.3 million) during the year, 

with undrawn facilities reducing by the drawdown on the HCA Rent to Buy funding to £25.5 million (2016: £25.9 million).  The 

average maturity of net debt remained at over five years.

Following on from the funding activity previously undertaken the significant balances of cash held by Coastline as a result 

of forward funding the business have been invested in a mixture of deposit and investment facilities to minimise the cost of 

carrying of these funds.  Cash available has decreased during the year to £14.8 million (2016: £29.3 million).

Re-financing risk: Re-financing risk is managed by setting targets of how much debt can be repayable within certain 

timeframes.  This position is reported to the Investment Committee on a quarterly basis.  At the year-end 2.5% (2016: 14.5%) 

of the Group’s debt fell due within the next three years.  This reduction reflected the work done during the course of 2016/17 

to restructure elements of Coastline’s financing.
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Value for Money: Operating and Financial Performance
To deliver value for money, Coastline must continually look at how resources are used to achieve continuous improvement and 

excellence in running the business and improving productivity.  When viewed in this way, it is clear that value for money is not 

a standalone activity, but something that is intrinsic to all core activities and decision-making processes.  

There is therefore no single policy or strategy that sets out how value for money will be achieved, although the various threads 

are pulled together in the corporate plan, and there is a particularly strong link with performance management and improvement 

processes, with strong and effective management integral in the process of delivering and improving business productivity.  

Our approach to ‘value for money’ is firmly embedded in our culture. From an ambitious Corporate Plan that is led by the Board 

and Executive Team, and has clear, measurable and stretching objectives, to a suggestion scheme where all staff are empowered 

to propose ideas that will improve how the organisation is run, and rewarded for those that are implemented. We have a Group 

Performance Management Team that meets monthly to review financial and non-financial performance indicators, to share 

knowledge and to make decisions based on this information.  Our Customers are also involved – the Customer Scrutiny into 

Coastline group have determined the suite of performance information that they require and review this every two months, 

presenting any comments they have directly to the Board.

This report provides a self-assessment to our stakeholders of how we are achieving ‘value for money’ in what we do.  It sets 

out a summary of Coastline’s financial and operational performance during 2016/17 and reports our progress against the four 

themes of our Corporate Plan, which are:

Great Homes        Great Services        Great People        Great Foundations

For Coastline this aim is embedded within the Corporate Plan objectives through the expectation of increased growth in units 

with limited expectations of staffing increases.

Coastline uses Operating Margin as proxy for operating cost per unit and has incorporated improving operating margin, from 

the current 32% to 38%, as a key measure within the Corporate Plan.  The biggest benefit of using a simple measure like this 

is that everyone understands its calculation and staff can see their impact on it.

Where we provide information about how we compared to other organisations we have used the best national comparison 

available so that we can compare ourselves against all housing associations.  This is done where possible using the HCA's Global 

Accounts as a reference group as this gives a large and statistically valid source of data. We do not seek to compare directly to 

housing associations locally as there are only three providers in Cornwall who do not operate multi-regionally or nationally, and 

we do not compare just to Large Scale Voluntary Transfer (LSVT) organisations as the HCA's analysis shows that length of time 

since our original transfer means this is no longer relevant.  We believe this is the most open and transparent approach, and that 

it provides us with the most challenging targets. 

Our regulator, the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA), published an update on the work it completed in 2012 by refreshing 

the Regression Analysis it published in the “Understanding unit costs of housing providers: regression analysis summary 

document“. The results from those publications are incorporated into this review with the key findings and comparisons to 

Coastline’s performance considered to ensure we communicate our understanding of our costs using a similar methodology to 

that of the HCA.
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As part of the regulatory standard on value for money Coastline is required to:

 • enable stakeholders to understand the return on assets measured against the organisation’s objectives

   return on assets is calculated and compared to the costs of raising finance to provide new assets

 • set out the absolute and comparative costs of delivering specific services

   the use and articulation of costs in relation to operating margin and comparisons across the sector provides evidence  

      on the cost of delivering services and how these compare to others

 • evidence the value for money gains that have been and will be made and how these have and will be realised over time

   evidence of value for money gains in the year is provided along with any additional estimation of how these will be  

      further realised over time

The standard also makes wider reference to expectations of registered providers as follows:

 • have a robust approach to making decisions on the use of resources to deliver the provider’s objectives, including an  

    understanding of the trade-offs and opportunity costs of its decisions

  the Corporate Plan and financial business planning are aligned so that decisions are made in light of aims and  

     objectives and consider opportunity costs

 • understand the return on its assets, and have a strategy for optimising the future returns on assets – including rigorous  

   appraisal of all potential options for improving value for money including the potential benefits in alternative delivery  

   models - measured against the organisation’s purpose and objectives

  current return on assets is calculated and quoted in this document.  The granular analysis of return on different assets  

     is considered as part of our Asset Viability and Investment Strategy which has identified properties for divestment   

     and driven the shift towards disposing of a greater volume of properties to reinvest in new provision

  • have performance management and scrutiny functions which are effective at driving and delivering improved value for  

    money performance 

  the Group Performance Management and Group Value for Money Frameworks describe Coastline’s approach to this  

     element of the standard and include specific reference to improving performance

 • understand the costs and outcomes of delivering specific services and which underlying factors influence these costs and  

   how they do so

  Coastline signed up to the Sector Scorecard pilot in January 2017 and is committed to benchmarking performance  

     to ensure that our business is efficient and striving to be the best. Details of our performance against the scorecard  

     measures is provided within the accounts as part of the pilot with work underway where we are not currently able to  

     provide the relevant information

  Coastline retains a subscription to the Housemark benchmarking service for performance measures but has dropped  

     the detailed activity cost benchmarking service as analysing costs below a certain level is not productive for three main  

     reasons.  

   i. the different approaches to recording and analysing costs at a low level 

   ii. the interplay between how teams are set up to work within different businesses.  

   iii. for Coastline we focus on outcomes and overall business efficiency and therefore the focus remains on  

       operating margin and performance measures such as arrears, voids and development of new homes.
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The broader approach for value for money activities and management within Coastline is contained within the Value for Money 

Framework which was most recently updated during 2015/16 and is available on request.

The summary outputs from the HCA’s work on reviewing operating costs across the sector was published in June 2016 and 

showed the following output from the Global Accounts 2015 information alongside their analysis which was published in 

“Delivering Better Value for Money: Understanding differences in unit costs – Summary Report, June 2016”.

This work has been supplemented by the early release of the 2015/16 Global Accounts data and reference information is taken 

from that source with previous editions of the same data providing the historical comparisons.

Coastline’s productivity target for 2016/17 was to maintain or reduce cost levels whilst increasing the number of units in 

management thereby further driving down our average headline social housing cost per unit.  The focus of action remains in 

relation to the total cost indicator as it is acknowledged as part of the HCA cost analysis that there are a number of approaches 

taken in apportioning costs between the different areas across the sector.

This analysis alongside the more qualitative details provided elsewhere in this Strategic Report demonstrate Coastline’s 

commitment to improving productivity and efficiency. 

The conclusion of our value for money self-assessment is that our approach to achieving value for money is comprehensive 

and supports us in meeting the strategic objectives of our Corporate Plan.  We remain committed to further improvements.  

Indeed, one of our core corporate values (page 3) is that we will ‘strive to be the best’, constantly seeking to improve and 

setting high standards and challenging goals for the organisation.
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In line with our commitment to demonstrating transparency and value for money Coastline has joined the pilot Sector Scorecard 

programme.  Our recent performance against the currently proposed metrics is provided below and at the May 2017 Social 

Housing Finance conference, Julian Ashby, chair of the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA), announced that within the 

Value for Money (VFM) Standard consultation the regulator proposes to use the Sector Scorecard to measure efficiencies.

The Sector Scorecard launched in January 2017 and aims to create an agreed set of metrics upon which housing providers can 

compare their performances and ensure they are providing value for money for their customers.

The Sector Scorecard measures 15 indicators across five general areas focusing on: business health, development, outcomes 

delivered, effective asset management and operating efficiencies.  

The specific indicators are:

Performance information and benchmarking

Indicator 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

A Operating margin 30.8% 32.3% 34.0%

B Operating margin (social housing lettings) 34.1% 35.7% 35.6%

C Interest cover EBITDA MRI 169.6% 160.7% 155.7%

D Units developed (absolute)  102  103  139 

E Units developed (as a percentage of units owned) 2.6% 2.6% 3.4%

F Gearing 70.5% 79.0% 67.0%

G Customers VFM satisfaction 92.2% 90.0% 90.0%

H Investment in new housing for every £1 generated from operations  £1.23  £1.60  £3.28 

I Investment in communities for every £1 generated from operations  £0.05  £0.03  £0.02 

J Return on capital employed 5.3% 4.9% 5.0%

K Management cost per unit  £772  £808  £609 

L Service charge cost per unit  £348  £294  £335 

M Maintenance cost per unit  £1,176  £1,174  £1,352 

N Major repairs per unit  £958  £920  £912 

O Other social housing costs per unit  £157  £124  £48 

P Headline social housing cost per unit  £3,410  £3,321  £3,256 

Q Overheads as a percentage of adjusted turnover. 12.9% 13.4% 13.8%

R Ratio of responsive repairs to planned maintenance spend  0.62  0.64  0.68 

S Occupancy 99.39% 99.43% 99.85%

T Rent collected 99.86% 99.90% 99.96%
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Definitions for all of the above measures can be found at 

http://www.sectorscorecard.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/01/Sector-Scorecard-indicators-and-definitions.pdf 

We are pleased to include our results in line with the pilot but acknowledge that the essence of a pilot programme is that 

elements of this suite of indicators will be subject to revision and amendment over time.  

Whilst Coastline welcomes the Scorecard, further analysis of the elements under management, service charges, maintenance 

and major repairs will require the sector to work together to ensure more consistency in approach.  The current results from the 

scorecard as with the HCA regression analysis output at a detailed level is subject to the different approaches to cost allocations 

that are made by providers and as such in line with our overall approach to value for money Coastline prefers to focus on a 

limited number of high level performance measures.
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Objective 2021 Measure March 2017 March 2018 Target
To build our share 
of the new homes 
needed to meet the 
needs of those that 
live in Cornwall

 1,000 new affordable  
     homes completed, including  
     130 homes for older persons

 Grant funding secured  
     for over 1,000 new homes  
     including 130 homes for  
     older persons

 395 new affordable homes  
     completed, including 20  
     rent to buy homes.

To continue to 
improve the overall 
quality of our homes

 No home costing more than  
    £600 a year to heat

 Work on converting SAP  
     scores into heating costs  
     underway

 No more than 260 homes  
     that cost more than £600 a  
     year to heat

To transform how we 
manage our assets, 
replacing our older 
more expensive 
homes with higher 
quality new ones

 Bringing forward up to 2%  
     of our existing homes a year  
     for disposal

 Selling up to 2% of our  
     existing homes a year

 All the proceeds re-invested  
     in new homes

 18 properties empty and  
     identified for sale

 2017/18 budget includes 17  
     identified properties for sale  
     and a further 25 properties  
     to sell from voids process.

 Profits from disposals linked  
     into grant bids.

 25 (based on 2017/18  
     budget)

 17 (based on 2017/18  
     budget)

 Mechanism in place  
     to track re-investment of  
     proceeds 

To establish a profit 
making private 
homes model to 
cross subsidise our 
charitable work

 45 homes for private sale  
    completed with the proceeds  
    re-invested in building new  
    affordable homes for rent  
    and sale

 Board approval for  
    subsidiary creation and  
    funding in principle agreed.

 3 homes for private sale  
    completed with a further  
    two sites acquired. 

Great Homes

Property numbers
The table below summarises how many properties Coastline has owned and managed over the last five years:

Property Stock No. No. No. No. No.

Social housing rented 3,744 3,763 3,804 3,873 3,951

Shared ownership 108 113 130 147 196

Non-social housing 9 9 9 9 9

Managed but not owned 14 14 14 14 14

Leasehold properties 93 93 94 94 95

Total Housing Stock 3,968 3,992 4,051 4,137 4,265

Garages 762 728 710 704 706

Total Property Stock 4,730 4,720 4,761 4,841 4,971

Performance information
This section of the report provides more detail of what we have achieved against our Corporate Plan aims, and what we plan 

to do in the coming years.

32

Strategic Report  - cont’d



3333

Strategic Report  - cont’d



3434

Great Services

Objective 2021 Measure March 2017 March 2018 Target

To ensure our customer 
service offer is digitally 
accessible and easy to 
use

 All of our core customer  
     services available for  
     Customers on-line

 50% of Customers  
     choosing  on-line services

 50% of our existing homes  
     re-let through our  
     ‘HomeZone’ letting portal

 Procurement process for  
     new CRM system in  
     progress

 62.8% of Customers  
     have confirmed access to  
     the internet

 56% as at March 2017  
     but not reflecting a full  
     years letting cycle

 Customer Portal issued  
     to all Customers with  
     ability to order a repair,  
     report ASB, make a request  
     and make an application  
     for Housing

 15% accessing the  
      Customer Portal and  
      self-serving

 50% of homes let through  
      HomeZone 

To achieve exceptional 
levels of customer 
satisfaction

 Customer satisfaction  
     levels of 93%

 Transactional monitoring of  
     Customer satisfaction in  
     place

 CRM project includes  
     new transactional  
     satisfaction measuring  
     proposals

 91% satisfaction through  
     ‘Voice of the Customer’

 ‘Voice of the Customer’  
      satisfaction survey tool  
      launched

 Transactional surveying for   
      Repairs and ASB in place

To provide a repairs 
service that is easy to 
use and delivers choice 
and quality

 Customers able to manage  
     repairs appointments  
     on-line

 99% Customer satisfaction  
     with repairs service

 99% of repairs completed  
     ‘right first time’

 CRM project includes  
     on-line repairs  
     appointments

 99.3% satisfaction for  
     2016/17

 99.7% of repairs  
     completed ‘right first time  
     during 2016/17

 2.5% of repairs reported  
     by Customers on-line via  
     Customer Portal by March  
     2018

 99.0% Customer  
     satisfaction with repairs  
     service

 98.5% of repairs  
     completed ‘right first time’

To help people back 
into work and training

 500 people helped back  
      into work or training

 41 Customers into work  
     during 2016/17

 53 into training during  
     2016/17

 60 Customers into work

 80 into training

To establish a 
sustainable model for 
delivering homeless 
services and expand the 
support we provide

 A new permanent home  
     for our Homeless Service  
     opened

 250 vulnerable people  
     assisted each year 

 Site identified and planning  
     application planned for July  
     2017

 160 people assisted

 Planning permission and  
     long term legal interest in  
     land secured

 Contactor selected and  
     construction work started  
     on-site

 250 assisted through the  
     day centre

To increase the number 
of older customers that 
we support

 130 new homes for older  
      people, including a new  
      Extra Care Complex

 Coastline Assist Customers  
     increased by 20%

 Grant funding for building  
     (capital) in place

 207 Coastline Assist  
     Customers

 20 units to be on-site

 Site secured for new Extra  
     Care Complex

 230 achieved in year
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Objective 2021 Measure March 2017 March 2018 Target
To be recognised as 
one of the best places 
to work in Cornwall 
and one of the best 
housing associations 
in the country 

 Sunday Times Top 50 Not  
      for Profit employer

 Currently Sunday Times  
      Top 100 Not for Profit  
      employer

 Sunday Times Top 65 Not  
      for Profit employer

To invest in our staff 
so that they can 
deliver to their full 
potential

 All staff have a continuous  
      career development plan in  
      place

 New appraisal system  
      launched February 2017

 New appraisal system  
      evaluated and all managers  
      to have development plans  
      in place

To ensure that we live 
up to the values we 
share

 At least 90% of staff feel  
      that our behaviours are in  
      line with our values

 Survey planned for  
       Autumn 2017

 At least 82.5% of staff feel  
      that our behaviours are  
      in-line with our values

Great People
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Great Foundations

Objective 2021 Measure March 2017 March 2018 Target
To grow our income while 
ensuring that we become 
more productive in how 
we work

 Operating margin of  
      38%

 Operating margin of  
      34%

 Operating margin of  
      31.6%

To continue to drive down 
our average cost of debt 
so that our operating 
surpluses go further

 Average cost of debt of  
      4.5%

 Average cost of debt of  
      4.31%

 Average cost of debt  
      4.10%   
 

To ensure that our 
Board and governance 
arrangements remain 
strong and keep pace with 
the changing dynamics of 
the Group

 Retention of the  
      highest possible ‘G1 V1’  
      regulatory status  
      throughout the life of  
      the Corporate Plan.

 HCA In Depth  
      Assessment confirmed  
      G1 & V1 ratings 
      as at June 2017.

 New committee structure  
      embedded;

 External Board  
      effectiveness review  
      undertaken;

 Board composition  
      reviewed.

To ensure that Coastline 
has the capacity and 
capability to deliver 
the objectives of the 
Corporate Plan

 We will pursue joint /  
      partnership working  
      and other strategic  
      alliances where this will  
      contribute towards  
      achieving the aims and  
      objectives of the  
      Corporate Plan

 Details provided above  
      and most recent report to  
      May 2017 Board.

 Three times a year report  
      to Board on Corporate  
      Plan progress

 Annual report to Board  
      on ‘state of play’ of  
      housing association  
      market in south west

By order of the Board

D Law MBE
Chair – Coastline Housing Ltd
27 July 2017
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Plym House
3 Longbridge Road
Marsh Mills
Plymouth PL6 8LT 
 
We have audited the financial statements of Coastline Housing Limited ("the Company") for the year ended 31 March 2017 
set out on pages 40 to 75.  The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and 
UK Accounting Standards (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) including FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard 
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland.

This report is made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Schedule 1 paragraph 16 to the Housing 
Act 1996 and Chapter 3 of part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state 
to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors' report and for no other purpose. 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the 
Company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective Responsibilities of Board Members and Auditor
As explained more fully in the Statement of the Board’s Responsibilities set out on page 15, the directors are responsible for 
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is 
to audit, and express an opinion on, the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards 
on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for 
Auditors.

Scope of the Audit of the Financial Statements
A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the Financial Reporting Council's web-site at 
www.frc.org.uk/auditscopeukprivate.
In our opinion the financial statements:

• give a true and fair view of the state of the Group and Company’s affairs as at 31 March 2017 and the Group and  
   Company’s surpluses for the year then ended;
• have been properly prepared in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
• have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006, the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and the  
   Accounting Direction for Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 2015.

Opinion on Other Matters Prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year is consistent with 
the financial statements. 
Based solely on the work required to be undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial statements and from reading 
the Strategic report and the Directors’ report:

• we have not identified material misstatements in those reports; and  
• in our opinion, those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Matters on which we are required to Report by Exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, 
in our opinion:

• adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches  
   not visited by us; or
• the association’s financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
• certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Victoria Sewell (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants
Plym House
Plymouth
PL6 8LT

1 August 2017
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Group Company

Note
2017
£’000

2016
£’000

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

Turnover: continuing activities 2 25,986 24,392 25,020 23,395

Cost of sales 2 (1,742) (966)  (1,742) (966)

Operating costs 2 (15,401) (15,550) (15,077) (14,750)

Operating surplus 2 8,843 7,876 8,201 7,679

Gift aid receivable - - 659 13

Surplus on sales of properties 5 522 933   522       933

Other finance expenditure 6 (1,377)        (269) (1,377)       (269)

Interest receivable & other income 104     152 104         152

Interest payable & similar charges 7 (4,029) (4,325) (4,029) (4,325)

Surplus for the year before taxation 4 4,063 4,367 4,080     4,183

Tax on surplus 26 (17) (37)      - -

Surplus for the year 4,046 4,330 4,080 4,183

Group Company

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

Actuarial loss on pension scheme (798) (120) (798) (120)

Total recognised surplus for the year 3,248 4,210 3,282 4,063

Statement of Other Comprehensive Income 

All the above results derive from continuing operations and are on a historic cost basis.

The statement of comprehensive income and other comprehensive income was approved by the Board on 27 July 2017 and 
signed on its behalf by:

D Law MBE A Young P Stephens

Chair Chief Executive Chair of Audit & Risk Committee
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Group Company

Fixed assets: Note
2017         
£’000

2016 
£’000 

2017        
£’000

2016 
£’000   

Intangible fixed assets 11 164 260 131 235

Housing properties 12 157,866 129,596 157,977 129,596

Other tangible fixed assets 13 4,135 4,177 3,991 4,015

Investments 14 - - 75 75

Total fixed assets 162,165 134,033 162,174 133,921

Current assets:

Stock 16 1,756 636 1,697 608

Rental and other debtors 15 2,552 1,930 2,470 1,843

Cash and cash equivalents 17 16,019 31,264 15,101 30,699

Total current assets 20,327 33,830 19,268 33,150

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 18 (5,341) (6,068) (5,045) (6,068)

Net current assets 14,986 27,762 14,223 27,082

Total assets less current liabilities 177,151 161,795 176,397 161,003

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 19 (144,149) (132,535) (144,149) (132,535)

Pension liabilities 23 (6,154) (5,656) (6,154) (5,656)

Provision for tax liabilities 27 (34) (38) - -

Net assets 26,814 23,566 26,094 22,812

Represented by:

Capital and reserves:  

Revenue reserves 26,814 23,566 26,094 22,812

26,814 23,566 26,094 22,812

These financial statements were approved by the Board on 27 July 2017 and signed on its behalf by:

Companies House Registered Number: 03284666

D Law MBE A Young P Stephens

Chair Chief Executive Chair of Audit & Risk Committee
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Cash flows from operating activities
2017
£’000

2016
£’000

Surplus for the year 4,046 4,330

   Adjustments for non-cash items:

Depreciation, and impairment charges 3,192 3,070

Amortisation of intangible fixed assets 110 93

Profit on sales of housing properties (1,142) (1,349)

Loss on sales of tangible fixed assets - (6)

Taxation 17 37

(Increase)/decrease on trade and other debtors (619) 1,381

(Increase)/decrease in stocks (31) 234

Decrease in trade, other creditors and provisions (198) (132)

Pension costs less contributions payable (449) (382)

   Adjustments for investing or financing activities:

   Interest receivable and similar income (104) (152)

   Interest payable and similar charges 5,114 4,480

   Amortisation of loan arrangement fees 292 114

   Government grants utilised in the year (539) (522)

   Tax paid (41) (49)

Net cash from operating activities 9,648 11,1147

Cash flows from investing activities

   Sales of housing properties 3,348 2,778

   Sales of other fixed assets 2 3

   Interest received 101 152

   Acquisitions of housing properties (31,006) (17,851)

   Capital improvements to existing properties (2,770) (2,728)

   Acquisitions of other fixed assets (349) (700)

   Grants received to support capital expenditure 7,976 3,969

Net cash from investing activities (22,698) (14,377)

Cash flows from financing activities

   Interest paid (5,490) (4,755)

   New secured loans 25,450 23,000

   Repayment of loans (21,611) (18)

   Loan arrangement fees (544) (139)

Net cash from financing activities (2,195) 18,088

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (15,245) 14,858

   Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 31,264 16,406

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 16,019 31,264
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GROUP Revenue 
reserve

Garlidna 
reserve

Restricted 
reserve

Total 
equity

£’000 £000 £’000 £’000

Balance at 1 April 2015 19,229 95 32 19,356

Surplus for the year 4,330 - - 4,330

Other comprehensive income (see note 24) (120) - - (120)

Total comprehensive income for the year 4,210 - - 4,210

Transfer from Garlidna reserve 36 (36) - -

Balance at 31 March 2016 23,475 59 32 23,566

Surplus for the year 4,046 - - 4,046

Other comprehensive income (see note 24) (798) - - (798)

Total comprehensive income for the year 3,248 - - 3,248

Transfer to Garlidna reserve (37) 37 - -

Balance at 31 March 2017 26,686 96 32 26,814

COMPANY Revenue 
reserve

Garlidna 
reserve

Restricted 
reserve

Total 
equity

£’000 £000 £’000 £’000

Balance at 1 April 2015 18,622 95 32 18,749

Surplus for the year - 4,183

Other comprehensive income (see note 24) 4,183 - - (120)

Total comprehensive income for the year (120) - - 4,063

Transfer from Garlidna reserve 4,063 - - -

Balance at 31 March 2016 36 (36) 32 22,812

22,721 59

Surplus for the year 4,080 - - 4,080

Other comprehensive income (see note 24) (798) - - (798)

Total comprehensive income for the year 3,282 - - 3,282

Transfer to Garlidna reserve (37) 37 -

Balance at 31 March 2017 25,966 96 32 26,094
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1  Accounting Policies

These Group and parent company financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 
The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (“FRS 102”) as issued in August 2014.  The 
amendments to FRS 102 issued in September 2015 and effective immediately have been applied.  The presentation currency of 
these financial statements is sterling.  All amounts in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest £1,000.

The parent company is included in the consolidated financial statements, and is considered to be a qualifying entity under FRS 
102 paragraphs 1.8 to 1.12. The following exemptions available under FRS 102 in respect of certain disclosures for the parent 
company financial statements have been applied:

• No separate parent company Cash Flow Statement with related notes is included. 

The accounting policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all periods presented in these 
financial statements. 

Judgements made by the Directors, in the application of these accounting policies that have significant effect on the financial 
statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are discussed in note 30.

Measurement Convention
The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis. 

Legal Status
The Company is a company limited by guarantee, and is registered under the Companies Act 2006.  It is a registered provider 
and a registered charity.

Basis of Preparation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings made 
up to 31 March 2017. A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the parent.  The results of subsidiary undertakings are 
included in the consolidated profit or loss account from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. 
Control is established when the Company has the power to govern the operating and financial policies of an entity so as to 
obtain benefits from its activities.  In assessing control, the Group takes into consideration potential voting rights that are 
currently exercisable.

In the parent financial statements, investments in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates are carried at cost less 
impairment.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with applicable 
Accounting Standards, the Accounting Direction for Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 2015 and the Statement 
of Recommended Practice, “Accounting by Registered Social Housing Providers 2014” (SORP 2014) and the Companies Act 
2006.

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material in 
relation to the Company’s financial statements.

Going Concern 
The Company and Group have sufficient financial resources based on forecasts and current expectations of future sector 
conditions.  As a consequence, the Board believes that the Company and Group are well placed to manage their business risks 
successfully. The Board has a reasonable expectation that the Company and Group have adequate resources to continue in 
operational existence for the foreseeable future. The Board therefore continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing 
these financial statements.

Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its three subsidiaries Coastline 
Services Limited; Coastline Care Limited; and Coastline Design & Build Limited.  The acquisition method of accounting has been 
adopted.  Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries are eliminated on consolidation.
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Basic Financial Instruments
Trade and other debtors/ creditors
Trade and other debtors/ creditors are recognised initially at transaction price less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent 
to initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses in 
the case of trade debtors.  If the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, for example if payment is deferred beyond 
normal business terms, then it is measured at the present value of future payments discounted at a market rate of interest for 
a similar debt instrument.

Interest-bearing borrowings classified as basic financial instruments
Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at the present value of future payments discounted at a market rate of 
interest. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method, less any impairment losses.

Investments in preference and ordinary shares
Investments in equity instruments are measured initially at fair value, which is normally the transaction price. Transaction 
costs are excluded if the investments are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss. Subsequent to initial 
recognition investments that can be measured reliably are measured at fair value with changes recognition in profit or loss.  
Other investments are measured at cost less impairment in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and 
form an integral part of the Company’s cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the 
purpose only of the cash flow statement.

Turnover 
Group and Company turnover comprises rental income receivable net of voids, income from property sales, service charges 
and other services which are included at the invoiced value of goods and services supplied in the period with grant income 
recognised under either the performance method or accruals method dependent on the type of grant.

Stock
Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and estimated selling price less costs to complete and sell.

The Company’s stock figure includes the proportion of shared ownership properties intended for first tranche sales, whether 
these have been completed and are ready for sale or in the course of construction.

Interest Payable 
Interest payable and similar charges include interest payable on long term borrowings. Borrowing costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that takes a substantial time to be prepared for use, are 
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. 

Other Interest Receivable 
Other interest receivable and similar income include interest receivable on funds invested.

Interest income and interest payable are recognised in profit or loss as they accrue, using the effective interest method. Gift aid 
income is recognised in the profit and loss account on the date the entity’s right to receive payments is established.

Retirement Benefits
The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme through the Social Housing Pension Scheme operated by The 
Pensions Trust.  The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the Company in an independently administered 
fund.  The amount charged to the profit or loss account represents the contributions payable to the schemes in respect of the 
accounting period. 

The Group participates in the Cornwall County Council Pension Fund providing benefits based on final pensionable pay, 
although it is closed to new entrants.  The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group. Pension 
scheme assets are measured using market values.  Pension scheme liabilities are measured using a projected unit method and 
discounted at the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liability.  The 
pension scheme surplus (to the extent that it is recoverable) or deficit is recognised in full. The movement in the scheme surplus/
deficit is split between operating charges, finance items and actuarial gains or losses in the statement of other comprehensive 
income. 
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The Group also participated in the defined benefit section of the Social Housing Pension Scheme operated by The Pensions 
Trust providing benefits based on final pensionable pay or on career average salary, although it is closed to future accrual. The 
assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group. The Pensions Trust is unable to identify the Group’s share of 
the underlying assets and liabilities of the scheme on a consistent and reasonable basis and therefore, as required by Financial 
Reporting Standard (FRS) 102, accounts for the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. 

Where the scheme is in deficit and where the company has agreed to a deficit funding arrangement, the company recognises a 
liability for this obligation. The amount recognised is the net present value of the deficit reduction contributions payable under 
the agreement that relates to the deficit. The present value is calculated using the discount rate detailed in these disclosures. 
The unwinding of the discount rate is recognised as a finance cost. 

Housing Properties
Housing properties are principally properties available for rent and are stated at cost less depreciation.  Cost includes the cost 
of acquiring land and buildings, directly attributable development costs, interest at the average cost of borrowing for the 
development period, and expenditure incurred in respect of improvements which comprise the modernisation and extension 
of existing properties.  Following the adoption of component accounting, completed housing properties are now split between 
their land and structure costs and a specific set of major components that require periodic replacement.

Depreciation is charged to the profit or loss account on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each component 
part of housing properties. Land is not depreciated. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Structure                    80 years

Cladding (as part of the structure)                 20 years

Windows and doors                   40 years

Roofs                     75 years

Kitchens                    20 years

Bathrooms                    30 years

Lifts (excluding stairs)                   15 years

Heating                     30 years

Gas boilers/ Heat pumps                   15 years

Properties are reviewed for impairment annually.  Where housing properties have suffered a permanent diminution in value, 
the impairment after deducting any related Social Housing Grant is recognised in the statement of consolidated income and 
included within cumulative depreciation.

Shared ownership properties are included in housing properties at cost related to the percentage of equity retained, less any 
provisions needed for impairment or depreciation. 

Development costs which arise directly from the construction or acquisition of a property are capitalised to housing properties 
in the course of construction.

Capital expenditure on schemes which are aborted is charged to the statement of consolidated income in the year in which it is 
recognised that the schemes will not be developed to completion.

Social Housing Grant
Social housing grant (SHG) is initially recognised at fair value as a long term liability, specifically as deferred grant income and 
released through the statement of consolidated income as turnover income over the life of the structure of housing properties 
in accordance with the accrual method applicable to social landlords accounting for housing properties at cost.  

On disposal of properties, all associated SHG is transferred to either the Recycled Capital Grant Fund (RCGF) or the Disposal 
Proceeds Fund (DPF) until the grant is recycled or repaid to reflect the existing obligation under the social housing grant funding 
regime.

Where, following the sale of a property, SHG becomes repayable, to the extent it is not subject to abatement, it is included as 
a liability until it is recycled or repaid.  SHG is subordinated in respect of loans by agreement with the Homes and Communities 
Agency.
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Government Grants
These include grants from local authorities and other organisations.  Other grants are initially recognised at fair value as a long 
term liability, specifically as deferred grant income and released through the statement of consolidated income as turnover over 
the life of the structure of housing properties in accordance with the accrual method applicable to social landlords accounting 
for housing properties at cost.  

Grants in respect of revenue expenditure are credited to the statement of consolidated income in the same period as the 
expenditure to which they relate.

Sale of Housing Properties
Surpluses on sales of housing accommodation comprise proceeds from property sales, which are recognised at the date of 
completion, less the net book value of the properties and take into account any liabilities under the Right to Buy sharing 
agreement with Cornwall Council.

Sale of Housing Properties – Shared Ownership
Under shared ownership arrangements, the Company sells an interest of between 25% and 75% in a Low Cost Home Ownership 
housing property at open market value.  The owner of a low cost home has the right to purchase further proportions up to 
100% (subject to occasional restrictions) at the then current valuation.  Proceeds of sale of first tranches are accounted for as 
turnover in the statement of consolidated income. Subsequent tranches sold are disclosed in the profit or loss account after the 
operating result as a surplus or deficit on sale of fixed assets.

Improvements, Major Repairs, Cyclical Repairs and Day to Day Repairs
The amount of expenditure incurred which relates to an improvement, which is defined as an increase in the net rental stream 
or the life of a property, has been capitalised.  Expenditure incurred on other major repairs, cyclical and day-to-day repairs to 
housing properties is charged to the statement of consolidated income in the period in which it is incurred.

Other Tangible Fixed Assets
Other tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.  Where parts 
of an item of tangible fixed assets have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items of tangible fixed assets, 
for example land is treated separately from buildings.  

Other tangible assets include those assets with an individual value in excess of £500 and community alarm equipment, which is 
specifically associated with an income stream. 

Depreciation is provided evenly on the cost of other tangible fixed assets to write them down to their estimated residual values 
over their expected useful lives.  No depreciation is provided on freehold land.  The principal annual rates used for other assets 
are:

Freehold office buildings                  50 years
Solar PV panels                   20 years
Smoke and carbon monoxide detectors                10 years
Furniture, fixtures and fittings       5 years
Motor vehicles         5 years
Plant and equipment        4 years
Computer hardware        3 years
Community alarm equipment       3 years
Grounds plant and equipment       3 years

Intangible Fixed Assets
Intangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

Depreciation is provided evenly on the cost of intangible fixed assets to write them down to their estimated residual values 
over their expected useful lives. The principal annual rates used for other assets are:

Computer software        3 years
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Operating Leases
Payments (excluding costs for services and insurance) made under operating leases are recognised in the profit or loss account 
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless the payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with 
expected general inflation;  in which case the payments related to the structured increases are recognised as incurred. Lease 
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss over the term of the lease as an integral part of the total lease expense.

Bad and Doubtful Debts
Provision is made against rent arrears of current and former tenants as well as miscellaneous debts to the extent that they are 
considered irrecoverable.  All former tenant arrears are fully provided for in the year that they occur.

Capitalisation of Interest
Interest on loans financing development is capitalised up to the end of the month in which practical completion occurs.

Capitalisation of Development Costs
Development costs which arise directly from the construction or acquisition of a property are capitalised to housing properties 
in the course of construction.

Capital expenditure on schemes which are aborted is charged to the statement of consolidated income in the year in which it is 
recognised that the schemes will not be developed to completion.

Taxation
Coastline Housing Limited is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 Finance Act 2010 and therefore it 
meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the charity is potentially exempt 
from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within categories covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 Corporation Tax 
Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied 
exclusively to charitable purposes.

The profit making companies within the Group (CSL, CCL and CDB) are liable to UK corporation tax.  The credit for taxation for 
the year includes current tax on the taxable profits for the year for these companies, where the profits are not relieved by losses 
brought forward.

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit and loss account except 
to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognised 
directly in equity or other comprehensive income. 

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted or 
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided on timing differences which arise from the inclusion of income and expenses in tax assessments 
in periods different from those in which they are recognised in the financial statements.  Deferred tax is not recognised on 
permanent differences arising because certain types of income or expense are non-taxable or are disallowable for tax or because 
certain tax charges or allowances are greater or smaller than the corresponding income or expense.  

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to the reversal of the related difference, using tax rates enacted 
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.  Deferred tax balances are not discounted.

Unrelieved tax losses and other deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that is it probable that they will be recovered 
against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits. 

Value Added Tax
The Company is registered for VAT, but a large proportion of its income, including rents, is exempt for VAT purposes and the 
majority of its expenditure is subject to VAT which cannot be reclaimed.  Expenditure is therefore shown inclusive of VAT.  The 
Company recovers VAT where appropriate and this is credited to the statement of consolidated income account and back 
against capital expenditure where appropriate. 
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2  Turnover, Operating Costs and Operating Surplus

GROUP 2017 2016

Turnover Cost of 
sales

Operating 
costs

Operating 
surplus

Turnover Cost of 
sales

Operating 
costs

Operating 
surplus

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Social housing lettings 20,932 - (13,486) 7,446 20,386 - (13,099) 7,287

Support contracts 336 - (336) - 336 - (336) -

Care and support 1,041 - (906) 135 994 - (888) 106

Other activities 1,251 - (609) 642 1,258 - (1,191) 67

Shared ownership first 
tranche sales

2,426 (1,742) (64) 620 1,418 (966) (36) 416

25,986 (1,742) (15,401) 8,843 24,392 (966) (15,550) 7,876

COMPANY 2017 2016

Turnover Cost of 
sales

Operating 
costs

Operating 
surplus

Turnover Cost of 
sales

Operating 
costs

Operating 
surplus

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Social housing lettings 20,932 - (13,587) 7,345 20,386 - (13,297) 7,089

Support contracts 336 - (336) - 336 - (336) -

Care and support 1,041 - (906) 135 994 - (888) 106

Other activities 285 - (184) 101 261 - (193) 68

Shared ownership first 
tranche sales

2,426 (1,742) (64) 620 1,418 (966) (36) 416

25,020 (1,742) (15,077) 8,201 23,395 (966) (14,750) 7,679
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GROUP

Income and expenditure
General 

needs
Sheltered 

housing
Shared 

ownership
2017 2016

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Income from lettings

Rent receivable 15,726 3,022 327 19,075 18,846

Service charges receivable 645 618 55 1,318 1,018

Grant income amortised 539 - - 539 522

Total income from lettings 16,910 3,640 382 20,932 20,386

Expenditure on letting activities

Management (1,976) (440) (120) (2,536) (3,261)

Services (1,086) (242) (66) (1,394) (1,188)

Routine maintenance (3,114) (694) - (3,808) (3,283)

Planned maintenance (1,485) (331) - (1,816) (1,451)

Major repairs expenditure (839) (187) - (1,026) (984)

Rent losses from bad debts (69) (15) (4) (88) (67)

Depreciation of housing properties (2,065) (460) (95) (2,620) (2,363)

Other costs (162) (36) - (198) (502)

Operating costs on lettings (10,796) (2,405) (285) (13,486) (13,099)

Operating surplus on lettings 6,114 1,235 97 7,446 7,287

Total income from lettings is shown net of void rent losses:

Rent losses from voids (95) (70) - (165) (203)

2  Turnover, Operating Costs and Operating Surplus - cont’d
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COMPANY

Income and expenditure
General 

needs
Sheltered 

housing
Shared 

ownership
2017 2016

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Income from lettings

Rent receivable 15,726 3,022 327 19,075 18,846

Service charges receivable 645 618 55 1,318 1,018

Grant income amortised 539 - - 539 522

Total income from lettings 16,910 3,640 382 20,932 20,386

Expenditure on letting activities

Management (1,976) (440) (120) (2,536) (3,261)

Services (1,086) (242) (66) (1,394) (1,188)

Routine maintenance (3,161) (705) - (3,866) (3,397)

Planned maintenance (1,507) (336) - (1,843) (1,501)

Major repairs expenditure (852) (190) - (1,042) (1,018)

Rent losses from bad debts (69) (15) (4) (88) (67)

Depreciation of housing properties (2,065) (460) (95) (2,620) (2,363)

Other costs (162) (36) - (198) (502)

Operating costs on lettings (10,878) (2,424) (285) (13,587) (13,297)

Operating surplus on lettings 6,032 1,216 97 7,345 7,089

Total income from lettings is shown net of void rents losses:

Rent losses from voids (95) (70) - (165) (203)

During the year the Company spent £9.521 million (2016: £8.644 million) on maintaining and improving its existing property 
stock of which £2.770 million (2016: £2.728 million) was capitalised. Grant of £0.442 million was received in respect of this 
expenditure during the year (2016: £nil). The total amount capitalised on roofs and heating components was £2.336 million 
(2016: £1.597 million).

2  Turnover, Operating Costs and Operating Surplus - cont’d
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3 Accommodation in Management

At the end of the year accommodation in management for each class of accommodation was as follows:

GROUP and COMPANY 2017
Properties

2016
Properties

General needs 3,231 3,158

Sheltered 720 715

Shared ownership 196 147

Non-social housing 9 9

Managed but not owned 14 14

Leasehold 95 94

4,265 4,137

4 Surplus for the Financial Year before Taxation
GROUP COMPANY

This is stated after charging/ (crediting):
    2017                                      

£’000
2016 
£’000 

2017        
£’000

2016 
£’000   

Depreciation on housing properties 2,620 2,363 2,620 2,363

Depreciation of other tangible fixed assets 375 311 257 208

Amortisation of intangible fixed assets 110 93 110 93

Amortisation of grant income (539) (522) (539) (522)

Loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets - 6 - 2

Operating lease rentals:

- vehicles, plant and equipment 130 148 22 22

- land and buildings 26 26 - -

Auditor’s remuneration:

- audit of these financial statements 21 23 21 23

- audit of the financial statements of subsidiary companies 10 5 - -

- tax services 16 14 10 13

- other services 5 - - -
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6 Other Finance Expenditure

GROUP and COMPANY 2017
£’000

2016
£’000

Net interest on LGPS assets and liabilities (note 24) 117 117

Unwinding of discount on the SHPS (note 24) 36 30

Unwinding of discount on the Coastline Pensioners (note 23) (4) 8

Amortisation of loan note fees 111 114

Early write off of loan note fees due to re-financing 181 -

Mark to market costs relating to re-financing 936 -

1,377      269   

7 Interest Payable and Similar Charges

GROUP and COMPANY 2017
£’000

2016
£’000

On loans and bank overdrafts 4,635 4,755

Interest capitalised on developments under construction (606)  (430)       

4,029 4,325

The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of finance costs capitalised in the period was 5.49% (2016: 5.49%).  

5 Surplus on Sale of Housing Properties

GROUP and COMPANY 2017
£’000

2016
£’000

Proceeds from sales of housing properties (gross) 1,383 1,673

Less: cost of sales (587)        (471) 

Less: Council share of proceeds under Right to Buy (274)      (269)   

522   933  
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COMPANY

Staff costs

- gross wages and salaries 3,948 3,700

- employer’s National Insurance contributions 369 311     

- employer’s pension costs 215 175         

4,532 4,186

GROUP
2017

Number
2016

Number

£120,001 to £130,000 1 1

£110,001 to £120,000 - -

£100,001 to £110,000 1 1

£90,001 to £100,000 2 -

£80,001 to £90,000 1 1

£70,001 to £80,000 - -

£60,001 to £70,000 5 5

COMPANY

£120,001 to £130,000 1 1

£110,001 to £120,000 - -

£100,001 to £110,000 1 1

£90,001 to £100,000 2 -

£80,001 to £90,000 1 1

£70,001 to £80,000 - -

£60,001 to £70,000 5 5

(c) The full time equivalent number of staff who received remuneration above £60,000:

This includes the remuneration of Executive Officers, which is also disclosed in note 9. 

GROUP 2017
Number

2016
Number

Average total full-time and part-time employees during the year 249 247

Average number of full-time equivalents employed during the year 218 217

COMPANY

Average total full-time and part-time employees during the year 170 174

Average number of full-time equivalents employed during the year 144 154

8 Employees
(a) Number of employees

(b) Staff costs for the above employees

GROUP 2017
£’000

2016
£’000

Staff costs:

- gross wages and salaries 5,528 5,225

- employer’s National Insurance contributions 489 428

- employer’s pension costs 272 280

6,289        5,933
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9 Board Members’ and Executive Officers’ Emoluments

Key management personnel are the Executive Team who oversees the day-to-day operational running and, working with the 
Board and wider colleagues, identify and execute the Group’s direction.  They are detailed on page 1 of these accounts.

The remuneration paid to the Executive Officers of the Group and the Board members during the year was as follows: 

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS Salary

£

Other 
emoluments

£

Pension

£

2017 
Total

£

2016
Total

£

Chief Executive 
A Young

106,694 8,695 8,793 124,182 121,070

Director of Housing, Assets and Communities,
L Beard 

86,496 7,080 7,179 100,755 100,589

Director of Corporate Services,
D Wingham

75,957 6,483 6,304        88,744 88,508

Director of Finance,
N Mallows

86,600 6,055 2,598 95,253 18,414

Director of Development,
C Weston

82,600 6,707 6,856 96,163 7,426

Interim Director of Development, 
S Sweetinburgh (Until 18 December 2015)

- - - - 100,000

TOTAL – COMPANY and GROUP 438,347 35,020 31,730 505,097 436,007

Emoluments in respect of Simon Sweetinburgh comprised consultancy fees for the interim role of Director of Development 
£nil (2016: £100,000).  These services were provided by Simon Sweetinburgh Consulting Ltd £nil (2016: £75,000) and First 
Sector Assist Limited £nil (2016: £25,000).
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9 Board Members’ and Executive Officers’ Emoluments - cont’d

NON - EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS 2017
£

2016
£

D Law MBE (Chair) 12,500 9,436

P Bearne 6,667 3,317

M Butterworth 833 -

D Chandra 7,500 5,147

I Cowley 1,887 4,946

S Dudley 5,000 4,117

D Ellis - 614

J Newey 3,750 3,347

H Riley-Humfrey 7,500 5,147

S Roberts 5,000 3,946

P Stephens 7,500 3,431

J Waldron 5,000 4,288

TOTAL - COMPANY 63,137 47,736

P Bearne - CSL - 572

S Roberts – CSL - 687

P Stephens - CSL - 2,745

TOTAL - GROUP 63,137 51,740

No Non-Executive Directors participate in any of the four Group pension schemes.  At the year-end five Executive Officers 
were members of one of the schemes (2016: five).  At the year-end £nil of pension scheme contributions relating to Executive 
Officers remained unpaid (2016: £6,449).  

One of the Executive Officers; Allister Young, was a statutory director in the year.

In respect of the officers that held the Chief Executive’s position during the year, pension arrangements were:

(a) As an ordinary member of the Social Housing Pension Scheme.
(b) No enhancement or special terms applied.
(c) No individual pension arrangement to which the Company makes a contribution.

Expenses paid during the year to Board Members amounted to £12,701 (2016: £10,249).
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10 Trusts       

The Company is Sole Corporate Trustee of Garlidna (Penzance Almshouses) Trust, a registered charity.  The income and 
expenditure of the Trust, and its assets and liabilities, are incorporated within the Company and Group’s financial statements. A 
transfer between reserves is performed annually for the deficit or surplus of income over expenditure.  This transfer is included 
within the statement of changes in equity.

11 Intangible Fixed Assets

GROUP and COMPANY Group
£’000

Company
£’000

Cost

At 1 April 2016 982 957

Additions 14 6

Disposals - -

At 31 March 2017 996 963

Depreciation

At 1 April 2016 (722) (722)

Charged in year (110) (110)

Disposals - -

At 31 March 2017 (832) (832)

Net book value

At 31 March 2017 164 131

At 31 March 2016 260 235

57

Notes to the Financial Statements - cont’d 



5858

GROUP

Housing properties Completed 
housing 

properties 
held for 

letting

Completed 
Shared 

Ownership 
housing 

properties

Housing 
properties 

under 
construction

Garlidna
Almshouse

Total

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Cost

At 1 April 2016 123,159 9,425 13,975 366 146,925

Additions - - 27,694 - 27,694

Additional works to existing properties 2,768 - - 2 2,770

Development administration - - 499 - 499

Interest capitalised - - 606 -

Schemes completed in year 12,662 3,882 (16,544) - -

Disposals (630) (78) - - (708)

Abortive/ impairment costs - - (197) - (197)

At 31 March 2017 137,959 13,229 26,033 368 177,589

Depreciation and impairment

At 1 April 2016 (16,873) (396) - (60) (17,329)

Charged in year (2,521) (95) - (4) (2,620)

Disposals 221 5 - - 226

At 31 March 2017 (19,173) (486) - (64) (19,723)

Net book value

At 31 March 2017 118,786 12,743 26,033 304 157,866

At 31 March 2016 106,286 9,029 13,975 306 129,596

12 Tangible Fixed Assets – Housing Properties

Included in the cost of housing properties is £2.2 million in respect of cumulative capitalised development administration costs 
(2016: £1.7 million) and cumulative capitalised interest of £2.8 million (2016: £2.2 million).

All housing properties are freehold.  See note 3 for accommodation in management.
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Valuation for disclosure only
The value of completed housing properties as at 31 March 2017 on an existing use value, Social Housing (EUV-SH) basis was 
£134.4 million (2016: £119.0 million).  

For information purposes only, completed housing properties are valued at 31 March 2017 by Savills (UK) Limited, qualified 
professional independent external valuers.

The valuation of the properties was undertaken in accordance with the Appraisal and Valuation Manual of the Royal 
Institution of Chartered Surveyors. 

In valuing housing properties, discounted cash flow methodology was adopted with key assumptions:

Social housing and shared ownership only

Discount rate 5.75%

Rent assumptions: Social rented minus 1% for the next four years and CPI +1.0% thereafter

   Shared ownership RPI +0.5%

   Other rents RPI +1.0% or in accordance with any relevant lease or nominations agreements 

12 Tangible Fixed Assets – Housing Properties - cont’d
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COMPANY

Housing properties Completed 
housing 

properties 
held for 

letting

Completed 
Shared 

Ownership 
housing 

properties

Housing 
properties 

under 
construction

Garlidna
Almshouse

Total

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Cost

At 1 April 2016 123,159 9,425 13,975 366 146,925

Additions - - 27,720 - 27,720

Additional works to existing properties 2,768 - - 2 2,770

Development administration - - 610 - 610

Interest capitalised - - 606 -

Schemes completed in year 12,678 3,882 (16,560) - -

Disposals (630) (78) (26) - (734)

Abortive/ impairment costs - - (197) - (197)

At 31 March 2017 137,975 13,229 26,128 368 177,700

Depreciation and impairment

At 1 April 2016 (16,873) (396) - (60) (17,329)

Charged in year (2,521) (95) - (4) (2,620)

Disposals 221 5 - - 226

At 31 March 2017 (19,173) (486) - (64) (19,723)

Net book value

At 31 March 2017 118,802 12,743 26,128 304 157,977

At 31 March 2016 106,286 9,029 13,975 306 129,596

12 Tangible Fixed Assets – Housing Properties - cont’d
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GROUP

Freehold 
offices

Furniture, 
fixtures & 

fittings

Computer 
hardware

Plant, 
equipment 
& vehicles

Community 
alarm 

equipment

Total

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Cost

At 1 April 2016 3,568 1,062 551 455 27 5,663

Additions 1 206 28 100 - 335

Disposals - (2) (2) (20) - (24)

At 31 March 2017 3,569 1,266 577 535 27 5,974

Depreciation

At 1 April 2016 (343) (379) (462) (293) (9) (1,486)

Charged in year (70) (143) (40) (118) (4) (375)

Disposals - - 2 20 - 22

At 31 March 2017 (413) (522) (500) (391) (13) (1,839)

Net book value

At 31 March 2017 3,156 744 77 144 14 4,135

At 31 March 2016 3,225 683 89 162 18 4,177

COMPANY

Freehold 
offices

£’000

Furniture, 
fixtures & 

fittings
£’000

Computer 
hardware

£’000

Plant, 
equipment 
& vehicles

£’000

Community 
alarm 

equipment
£’000

Total 

£’000

Cost

At 1 April 2016 3,568 1,062 551 8 27 5,216

Additions 1 206 28 - - 235

Disposals - (2) (2) - - (4)

At 31 March 2017 3,569 1,266 577 8 27 5,447

Depreciation

At 1 April 2016 (343) (379) (462) (8) (9) (1,201)

Charged in period (70) (143) (40) - (4) (257)

Disposals - - 2 - - 2

At 31 March 2017 (413) (522) (500) (8) (13) (1,456)

Net book value

At 31 March 2017 3,156 744 77 - 14 3,991

At 31 March 2016 3,225 683 89 - 18 4,015

13 Tangible Fixed Assets – Other
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14 Investments
GROUP COMPANY

2017
£

2016
£

2017
£

2016
£

Ordinary shares of £1 each – Coastline Services Limited - - 75,000 75,000

Ordinary shares £1 each – Coastline Design and Build Limited - - 1 1

Ordinary shares £1 each – Coastline Care Limited - - 1 1

- - 75,002 75,002

The Company holds 100% of the share capital of Coastline Services Limited.  Coastline Services Limited is a Company 
incorporated in England and Wales (Company number 05558027).  The principal activity of the Company is the provision of 
maintenance and technical services, primarily in respect of affordable housing.  Coastline Services Limited has an agreement 
with Coastline Housing Limited for the provision of responsive maintenance and void repairs.  The accounts of Coastline 
Services Limited are available to the public and may be obtained from its registered office at Coastline House, 4 Barncoose 
Gateway Park, Pool, Redruth, Cornwall TR15 3RQ.

The Company holds a £1 share in Coastline Design and Build Limited, which was newly incorporated on 3 June 2015.  
Coastline Design and Build Limited is a company incorporated in England and Wales (Company number 09622238).  The 
principal activity of the Company is that of a commercial design and build contractor for new builds whose principal client is 
CHL.  The accounts of Coastline Design and Build Limited are available to the public and may be obtained from its registered 
office at Coastline House, 4 Barncoose Gateway Park, Pool, Redruth, Cornwall TR15 3RQ.

The Company holds a £1 share in Coastline Care Limited.  Coastline Care Limited is a company incorporated in England and 
Wales (Company number 06665734).  The Company has been dormant since 1 April 2015.  The accounts of Coastline Care 
Limited are available to the public and may be obtained from its registered office at Coastline House, 4 Barncoose Gateway 
Park, Pool, Redruth, Cornwall TR15 3RQ.

15 Debtors GROUP COMPANY

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

Due within one year:

Current tenants 167 183 167 183

Former tenants 121 148 121 148

Less provision for bad and doubtful debts (165) (207) (165) (207)

Total rent & service charges receivable 123           124 123       124      

Trade debtors 27 77 - -

Taxation and social security 81 - 40 -

Other debtors 2,052 1,502 2,052 1,502

Less provision for bad and doubtful debts (238) (277) (238) (277)

Prepayments and accrued income 507 504 493 494

Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - - -

2,552 1,930 2,470 1,843

At 31 March 2017 the outstanding rent and service charge amount for current tenants of general needs and older persons 
properties (as benchmarked by ‘HouseMark’) was £98,411 (2016: £140,225) representing 0.51% (2016: 0.76%) of the 
annual rent debit.

Included in other debtors are amounts owing from four (2016: six) employees of the Group participating in the car loan 
scheme.  A total of two employees have settled their loans within the financial year 2016/17 and no further loans were 
advanced.  The aggregate amount outstanding at year end was £4,166 (2016: £10,430) of which £1,320 was due after more 
than one year (2016: £6,730).
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16 Stock GROUP COMPANY

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

Shared ownership first tranches

     -Completed 1,697 145 1,697 145

     -Work in progress - 463 - 463

Property held for resale - - - -

Work in progress 59 28 - -

1,756 636 1,697 608

17 Cash and Cash Equivalents/ Bank Overdrafts

GROUP COMPANY

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

Cash at bank and in hand 16,019 31,264 15,101 30,669

Cash and cash equivalents per cash flow statement 16,019 31,264 15,101 30,669

There were no significant non-cash transactions in the year included.  

There are no restrictions on cash and cash equivalents held.

18 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

GROUP COMPANY

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

Trade creditors 2,104 1,318 732 1,164

Rent, service and other charges received in advance 421 459 421 459

Taxation and social security - 63 - 23

Accruals and deferred income 2,621 3,424 1,837 3,232

Other creditors 195 214 195 214

Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings - - 1,860 386

Bank loans - 590 - 590

5,341 6,068 5,045 6,068

Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings are trading balances repayable on demand and non-interest bearing.

63

Notes to the Financial Statements - cont’d 



6464

19 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

GROUP and COMPANY

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

Bank loans 81,210 101,779

Private placement 25,000 -

Arrangement fees capitalised (1,500) (1,246)

104,710 100,533

Deferred capital grant 39,198 31,890

Disposal Proceeds Fund 4 4

Recycled Capital Grant Fund 237 108

144,149 132,535

Arrangement fees were incurred in respect of the arrangement of new financing during the year, these fees have been 
capitalised and are being amortised over the term of the loans. Total additional fees of £544,000 incurred in respect of new 
loan facilities (2016: £136,000) were capitalised during the year. During the year £290,000 (2016: £114,000) of capitalised 
fees were amortised.  

The balance on Deferred Capital Grant shown above is net of amortised grant already released to the Statement of 
Consolidated Income and reserves.  Total Capital Grant received is £41.9 million (2016: £34.1 million).

Disposal Proceeds Fund 2017
£’000

2016
£’000

Opening balance 1 April 4 -

Arising in the year - 4

Applied to development schemes - -

Closing balance 31 March 4 4

Recycled Capital Grant Fund 2017
£’000

2016
£’000

Opening balance 1 April 108 172

Arising in the year 129 108

Applied to development schemes - (172)

Closing balance 31 March 237 108
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20 Debt Analysis

Debt is repayable as follows:

GROUP and COMPANY

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

Less than one year - 590

Between two and five years - 16,070

After five years 106,210 85,709

106,210 102,369

Borrowing Facilities

The Group and Company has undrawn committed borrowing facilities.  Undrawn facilities available at 31 March 2017 were as 
follows:

GROUP and COMPANY

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

Expiring between two and five years 25,000 25,000

Expiring in more than five years 450 -

25,450 25,000

The main bank loans are secured by fixed charges upon a defined subset of the Company’s lettable properties.
Included in the above is a loan of £23,000 (2016: £42,000) for the Garlidna Almshouses Trust property which is secured 
against that property only (see note 12).   

Financial Liabilities

The interest rate profile of the Group and Company’s financial liabilities as at 31 March 2017 was:

GROUP and COMPANY

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

Floating rate 9,219 17,605

Fixed rate 96,991 84,764

106,210 102,369

The weighted average period for which interest rates were fixed was 17 years (2016: 15 years), and the weighted average 
fixed interest rate was 4.56% (2016: 5.25%) including margins.

The fixed rate loans are for terms maturing between five years and 30 years at interest rates ranging from 1.00% to 8.00% 
including margins.
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21 Non-equity Share Capital
The Company is limited by guarantee.

22 Financial Commitments

Capital expenditure commitments are as follows:

GROUP and COMPANY

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

Expenditure contracted for but not provided in the accounts 44,525 41,326

Expenditure authorised by the Board but not contracted 73,113 10,778

Of the £117.6 million of capital commitments at 31 March 2017, £21.7 million (2016: £6.1 million) will be funded by grant 
and other public finance. The remainder will be fully funded through existing loan facilities, cash balances and new loan 
facilities due to be arranged within the next 12 months.  All contracted expenditure can be met within existing funding 
arrangements.

Operating Leases

At 31 March 2017 Group and Company future minimum lease payments payable under non-cancellable operating leases are 
as follows:

GROUP COMPANY

Land and buildings, leases expiring
2017
£’000

2016
£’000

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

Within one year - - - -

In two to five years 79 102 - -

79 102 - -

Vehicles, plant and equipment, leases expiring 24 19 - -

Within one year 82 102 53 80

In two to five years 106 121 53 80

GROUP and COMPANY

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) 4,248 3,551

Social Housing Pension Scheme (SHPS) 1,718  1,899       

Coastline Pensioners 188 206        

6,154       5,656 

23 Pension Liabilities

Further details of the LGPS and SHPS pension liabilities are included within the pensions note below.

The ‘Coastline Pensioners’ are historic retirees who by virtue of agreements following restructuring post stock transfer in 
1998, are paid an inflating pension until they die.  These pensions are increased annually in accordance with local government 
pension scheme rules.  Payments during the year to these pensioners were £12,000 (2016: £12,000). The carrying value of 
the liability of £188,000 (2016: £206,000) represents the discounted value of expected future payments discounted at 3.1% 
(2016: 3.1%).
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The Group participates in four pension schemes:

(1) Cornwall Pension Fund (CPF): Funded Defined Benefit Final Salary Pension Scheme

The Group participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), which is administered by Cornwall Council.  The CPF 
is a defined benefit scheme based on final pensionable salary and is closed to new members.  Contributions to the schemes are 
charged to the statement of consolidated income so as to spread the costs over the members’ working lives.

The most recent valuation was carried out as at 31 March 2016, and has been updated by independent actuaries to the CPF 
to take account of the requirements of FRS 102 in order to assess the liabilities of the fund as at 31 March 2016. The value of 
the scheme assets at 31 March 2016 were £1.475 billion representing 75.2% of the benefits that had accrued to members 
allowing for expected future increases in earnings.  Liabilities are valued on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method 
which assesses the future liabilities discounted to their present value.  The scheme is closed to new entrants and by using the 
projected unit method current service cost will increase as members of the scheme approach retirement.

There were outstanding contributions of £nil at 31 March 2017 (2016: £nil).

The Group contributes to the CPF at a contribution rate set having regard to the liabilities.

24 Pensions

At 31 March 
2017

At 31 March 
2016

£’000 % £’000 %

Equities 3,689 2.5 3,310 3.4

Bonds 3,529 2.5 3,237 3.4

Property 642 2.5 504 3.4

Other assets 160 2.5 144 3.4

Total value of assets and returns 8,020 2.5 7,195 3.4

a)  Main actuarial assumptions used for the purposes of FRS 102:

At 31 March 
2017

At 31 March 
2016

% %

Discount rate 2.5 3.4

Rate of increase in salaries 2.5 4.1

Rate of increase in pensions 2.4 2.1

Rate of inflation 2.5 4.1

Life expectancy is based on the Fund’s Vita Curves with improvements in line with CMI 2013 model assuming the current 
rate of improvements has peaked and will converge to a long term rate of 1.25% p.a. a peaked long term rate of 1.25% per 
annum. Based on these assumptions, the average future life expectancies at age 65 are summarised below:

• Current pensioner aged 65:   22.1 years (male), 24.5 years (female)

• Future pensioner* upon reaching 65:   24.0 years (male), 26.4 years (female

*Figures assume members aged 45 as at the last formal valuation date.

b)  Scheme assets and expected returns:

Assets are valued at fair value, principally market value for investments.  The proportions of total assets held in each asset 
type, shown above, reflect the proportions held by the CPF as a whole as at 31 March 2017.
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24 Pensions - cont’d
c)  The following amounts were measured in accordance with the requirements of FRS 102:

At 31 March 
2017

At 31 March
2016

£’000 £’000

Share of assets in CPF         8,020         7,195 

Estimated liabilities in CPF (12,268) (10,476)

Net pension liability (4,248) (3,551)

The net pension liability is shown on the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017.

d)  Analysis of amount charged to operating profit in the year:

Year ended     
31 March 2017

Year ended 
31 March 2016

£’000 £’000

Operating surplus

Current service cost (59) (68)

Total operating charge (59) (68)

Other finance income

Expected return on employer assets 242 232

Interest on pension scheme liabilities (359) (349)

Net return (117) (117)

Net revenue account charge (176) (185)

e) Analysis of amount recognised in statement of total recognised surplus and deficits:

Year ended     
31 March 2017

Year ended 
31 March 2016

£’000 £’000

Experience gains/ (losses) on assets 748 (434)

Experience gains on liabilities 114 182

Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of the scheme liabilities (1,617) 523

Actuarial (losses)/gains in pension plan (755) 271
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f)  Movement in deficit during the year:

Year ended 31 
March 2017

Year ended 31 
March 2016

£’000 £’000

Opening defined benefit obligation 10,746 11,434

Current service cost 59 68

Interest cost 359 349

Contributions by members 13 13

Actuarial losses/ (gains) 1,503 (705)

Estimated benefits paid (412) (413)

Closing defined benefit obligation 12,268 10,746

Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation:

Reconciliation of fair value of employer assets:

24 Pensions - cont’d

Year ended 31 
March 2017

Year ended 31 
March 2016

£’000 £’000

Opening fair value of employer assets 7,195 7,573

Expected return on assets 242 232

Contributions by members 13 13

Contributions by the employer 234 224

Actuarial gains/ (losses) 748 (434)

Benefits paid (412) (413)

Closing fair value of employer assets 8,020 7,195

Year ended 
31 March 2017

Year ended 
31 March 2016

£’000 £’000

Experience gains/ (losses) on assets 748 59

Percentage of assets 9% 1%

Experience gains on liabilities 114 182

Percentage of the present value of liabilities 1% 2%

Actuarial (losses)/ gains recognised (755) 271

Percentage of the present value of liabilities (6)% 3%

Cumulative losses (3,393) (2,638)

g)  History of experience gains and losses:
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Present value of provisions 

At 31 March 
2017
£’000

At 31 March 
2016

£’000

Present value of provision 1,718 1,899

24 Pensions - cont’d

Year ended
31 March 2017

£’000

Year ended
31 March 2016

£’000

Provision at start of period 1,899 1,692

Unwinding of the discount factor (interest expense) 36 30

Deficit contribution paid (260) (214)

Remeasurements - impact of any change in assumptions 43 (10)

Remeasurements - amendments to the contribution schedule - 401

Provision at end of period 1,718 1,899

Reconciliation of opening and closing provisions

(2)  Social Housing Pension Scheme (SHPS): Defined Benefit Pension Scheme

The Group participates in the scheme, a multi-employer scheme which provides benefits to some 500 non-associated 
employers. The scheme is a defined benefit scheme in the UK. It is not possible for the Group to obtain sufficient information 
to enable it to account for the scheme as a defined benefit scheme. Therefore it accounts for the scheme as a defined 
contribution scheme.

The scheme is subject to the funding legislation outlined in the Pensions Act 2004 which came into force on 30 December 
2005. This, together with documents issued by the Pensions Regulator and Technical Actuarial Standards issued by the 
Financial Reporting Council, set out the framework for funding defined benefit occupational pension schemes in the UK.

The scheme is classified as a ‘last-man standing arrangement’. Therefore the Group is potentially liable for other participating 
employers’ obligations if those employers are unable to meet their share of the scheme deficit following withdrawal from the 
scheme. Participating employers are legally required to meet their share of the scheme deficit on an annuity purchase basis on 
withdrawal from the scheme.

A full actuarial valuation for the scheme was carried out with an effective date of 30 September 2014. This actuarial 
valuation was certified on 23 November 2015 and showed assets of £3.123 billion, liabilities of £4.446 billion and a deficit 
of £1.323 billion. To eliminate this funding shortfall, the trustees and the participating employers have agreed that additional 
contributions will be paid, in combination from all employers, to the scheme up to 30 September 2016. Coastline will make 
deficit contributions of £344,000 in 2017/18.

Note that the scheme’s previous valuation was carried out with an effective date of 30 September 2011; this valuation was 
certified on 17 December 2012 and showed assets of £2.062 billion, liabilities of £3.097 billion and a deficit of £1.035 billion. 
To eliminate this funding shortfall, payments consisted of the Tier 1, 2 & 3 deficit contributions.

Where the scheme is in deficit and where the Group has agreed to a deficit funding arrangement, the Group recognises 
a liability for this obligation. The amount recognised is the net present value of the deficit reduction contributions payable 
under the agreement that relates to the deficit. The present value is calculated using the discount rate detailed in these 
disclosures. The unwinding of the discount rate is recognised as a finance cost. 
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Year ended
31 March 2017

£’000

Year ended
31 March 2016

£’000

Interest expenditure 36 30

Remeasurements – impact of any change in assumptions 43 (10)

Remeasurements – amendments to the contribution schedule - 401

Contributions paid in respect of future service* - 136

Costs recognised in Statements of Consolidated Income and Other Comprehensive 
Income

79 557

Income and Expenditure Impact

*includes defined contribution schemes and future service contributions (i.e. excluding any deficit reduction payments) to 
defined benefit schemes which are treated as defined contribution schemes. 

31 March 2017
% per annum

31 March 2016
% per annum

Rate of discount 1.33 2.06

Assumptions

The discount rates shown above are the equivalent single discount rates which, when used to discount the future recovery 
plan contributions due, would give the same results as using a full AA corporate bond yield curve to discount the same 
recovery plan contributions.

The Company has been notified by The Pensions Trust of the estimated employer debt on withdrawal from the Social Housing 
Pension Scheme, based on the financial position of the Scheme as at 30 September 2014.  At this date the estimated 
employer debt for the Company was £15.0 million (2016: £10.1 million).

The pension cost charge representing contributions payable by the Group to the scheme for the year amounted to £nil (2016: 
£155,982).  Contributions amounting to £nil (2016: £28,606) were payable to the scheme by the Group at the end of the 
financial year. 

The pension cost charge representing contributions payable by the Company to the scheme for the year amounted to £nil 
(2016: £96,779).  Contributions amounting to £nil (2016: £28,606) were payable to the scheme by the Company at the end 
of the financial year. 

24 Pensions - cont’d

(3) Scottish Widows: Defined Contribution Pension Scheme
The Group operated a defined contribution pension scheme during the year; this was previously operated by The Homeless 
Service, an operating division of the Company.

The pension cost charge representing contributions payable by the Group to the scheme for the year amounted to £nil (2016: 
£1,576). Contributions amounting to £nil (2016: £nil) were payable to the scheme at the end of the financial year. 

The pension cost charge representing contributions payable by the Company to the scheme for the year amounted to £nil 
(2016: £992). Contributions amounting to £nil (2016: £nil) were payable to the scheme at the end of the financial year. 
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(4) Social Housing Pension Scheme (SHPS): Defined Contribution Pension Scheme
The Group reached its staging date for auto enrolment on 1 February 2014.  The scheme it elected to auto enrol employees 
into was the SHPS defined contribution scheme.

The pension cost charge representing contributions payable by the Group to the scheme for the year amounted to £212,371 
(2016: £84,161).  Contributions amounting to £nil (2016: £6,814) were payable to the scheme at the end of the financial 
year. 

The pension cost charge representing contributions payable by the Company to the scheme for the year amounted to 
£169,072 (2016: £51,011).  Contributions amounting to £nil (2016: £6,814) were payable to the scheme at the end of the 
financial year. 

25 Related Parties
Non-Executive Directors
Two Non-Executive Customer Directors who served during the year (2016: two) have a standard tenancy agreement and are 
required to fulfil the same obligations and receive the same benefit as other Customers.  There are no rental arrears to report 
as at year-end (2016: £nil).

Mr. Cowley, Non-Executive Director and previously Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee, held a close relationship with 
a Director of General Industries PLC, who purchased the entire share capital of Murja Limited, a company which provides 
Coastline with treasury and investment advice. Following this acquisition and disclosure to the Board, it was mutually agreed 
that Mr. Cowley step aside from the role as Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee to ensure independence. Total fees 
charged in year to date of resignation of Mr. Cowley (30 September 2016) were £3,000 (2016: Total fees charged since 
acquisition on 14 December 2015 to 31 March 2016 were £3,000). All information provided to Coastline was independent of 
this relationship and charged on a normal commercial basis.

Subsidiary Companies
Coastline Housing (CHL) has subsidiaries which are not regulated by the Homes and Communities Agency: Coastline Services 
Limited (CSL); Coastline Care Limited (CCL); and Coastline Design and Build Limited (CDB) (see note 28).

CSL’s main business is the provision of building, maintenance and technical management services, which includes property and 
grounds maintenance work undertaken for CHL.  The total value of work undertaken by CSL on behalf of CHL during the year 
was £3,091,000 (2016: £3,254,000), this is removed on consolidation in the Group financial statements.  The total balance 
due to CSL from CHL at 31 March 2017 was £539,000 (2016: £336,000).

CCL was Dormant throughout the period to 31 March 2017 (2016: Dormant)

CDB’s main business is that of a commercial design and build contractor for new builds whose principal client is CHL.  
The total value of work undertaken by CDB on behalf of CHL during the year was £20,967,000 (2016: £81,000).  This is 
removed on consolidation in the Group financial statements. The total balance due to CDB from CHL at 31 March 2017 was 
£1,320,000 (2016: £50,000). 

CHL provides certain administrative functions for the other Group companies, including  financial, human resources and IT.  
These are recharged on the most appropriate basis, either on head count or on floor area of office space occupied.

All transactions with Group companies are on an arm’s-length basis and on commercial terms.

24 Pensions - cont’d
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GROUP COMPANY

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

Current tax: 

UK corporation tax on profits for the year at 20% (2015: 21%) 21 40 - -

Adjustment in respect of previous periods - - - -

21 40 - -

Deferred tax:

Origination and reversal of timing differences (note 27) (4) (3) - -

Total corporation tax 17 37 -       - 

26 Tax on Surplus on Ordinary Activities

2017 2016

Current Tax
£000

Deferred Tax
£000

Total Tax
£000

Current Tax
£000

Deferred Tax
£000

Total Tax
£000

Recognised in profit or loss 21 (4) 17 40 (3) 37

Recognised directly in equity - - - - - -

Total tax 21 (4) 17 40 (3) 37

Factors affecting the tax charge for the current year:
The current tax charge of £17,000 (2016: £37,000) for the year is lower (2016: lower) than the standard rate of corporation 
tax in the UK of 20% (2016: 20%).  The differences are explained below:

GROUP COMPANY

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

Surplus on ordinary activities before tax 4,063 4,367 4,080 4,183

Current tax at 20% (2016: 20%) 813 873 816 836

Surpluses not subject to corporation tax (796) 836 (816) (836)

Effect of marginal relief - - - -

Adjustments in respect of previous periods - - - -

Total current tax charge (see above) 17 37 - -

GROUP
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GROUP

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

At 1 April 38 41

(Released)/ charged in the year (2) (3)

Change in underlying rate of tax (2) -

At 31 March 34 38

Comprising:

Accelerated capital allowances 34 38

27 Provision for Liabilities

Deferred tax

Reductions in the UK corporation tax rate from 23% to 21% (effective from 1 April 2014) and 20% (effective from 1 April 
2015) were substantively enacted on 2 July 2013. Further reductions to 19% (effective from 1 April 2017) and to 18% 
(effective 1 April 2020) were substantively enacted on 26 October 2015. In the budget on 16 April 2016, the chancellor 
announced additional planned reductions to 17% by April 2020. This will reduce the Group’s future tax charge accordingly. 
The deferred tax liability at 31 March 2017 has been calculated based on the rate of 19% substantively enacted at the 
balance sheet date. 
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28 Group Members
Coastline Housing Limited is the parent undertaking and has three subsidiaries being Coastline Services Limited (see note 14); 
Coastline Care Limited (see note 14); and Coastline Design and Build Limited (see note 14).

29 Legislative Provision
The Company is a company limited by guarantee and is registered with the Homes and Communities Agency under the 
Housing and Regeneration Act 2008. The registered provider number for Coastline Housing Limited is LH4165.

The Company is also a registered charity (registration charity no. 1066916).

30 Accounting Estimates and Judgements
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.  The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, 
seldom equal the related actual results.  The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

Useful economic lives of tangible assets
The annual depreciation charge for tangible assets is sensitive to changes in the estimated useful economic lives of the assets 
so these are re-assessed annually and amended when necessary to reflect current estimates.  See note 13 for the carrying 
amount of the property plant and equipment, and note 1 for the useful economic lives for each class of assets.

Impairment of debtors
The Group makes an estimate for the recoverable value of rental arrears, trade and other debtors.  When assessing 
impairment of trade and other debtors, management considers factors including the current credit rating of the debtor, the 
ageing profile of debtors and historical experience.  See note 15 for the net carrying amount of the debtors and associated 
impairment provision.

Pensions
FRS 102 requires that certain assumptions are made in order to determine the amount to be recorded for retirement benefit 
obligations and pension plan assets, in particular for defined benefit plans. These are mainly actuarial assumptions such as 
expected inflation rates, long, employee turnover, expected return on plan assets and discount rates. Substantial changes in 
the assumed development of any one of these variables may significantly change the Group’s retirement benefit obligation 
and pension assets.

Valuation of housing properties
The Group tests annually whether there are any impairment triggers that would require the Group to undertake a full 
impairment review of housing properties under FRS 102.  In July 2015 the Government announced a 1% reduction for the 
next four years of rental income for social housing properties effective from 1 April 2016.  This announcement was identified 
as an impairment trigger and accordingly a full impairment review was undertaken at the March 2016 year end.

There have been no such impairment triggers during the year ended 31 March 2017.

The recoverable value is assessed as the higher of fair value or value in use.  The SORP considers depreciated replacement 
cost as a reasonable estimate for value in use taking into consideration the service potential of social housing.  The valuation 
of housing properties at the year-end have therefore been assessed using depreciated replacement cost.  These calculations 
require the use of assumptions and estimates, in particular in relation to the identification of cash generating units, expected 
replacement cost and the service potential of the asset.

Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies
There are no such judgements in either the current or prior year.
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Coastline Housing

Coastline House

4 Barncoose Gateway Park

Redruth

Cornwall  TR15 3RQ

www.coastlinehousing.co.uk

08082 027728

01209 200200

customer.services@coastlinehousing.co.uk

twitter.com/coastlinehouse

facebook.com/coastlinehousing
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